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OOMPANY PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL TRENDS

S o m e  of  t h e  key f i nanc ia l  and  o p e r a t i o n a l  d a t a  f o r  t h e  last f ive  years  a r e  p r ov i de d  in t h e  t a b l e  b e l o w;

D w L d c jK l  pc-r

I

Mh|>7 10-11

Vtai

Amou nt (Rs.in lacs) 

Q6-Q7 Q7-Q8 0S-Q9 0 9 -1 0  10-11
Financial Perform ancE

Turnover 5B35 525 2 7 340 B753 9S4B

Profit before tax 4 1 4 SB 2 992 12 24 14 DB

PBT % to  tu rnover 7.1% ID .9% 13.5% 14.0% 14.8%

Profit a ftertax 23S 4 3 4 SBS BIB 947

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) S.SD ID.SD 14.47 20.2B 2 3.49

Dividend per equity share (Rs.) 1.5D 2.DD 2.50 3 .00 4 .0 0

Financial Posit ion

Fixed Assets [Net B bck ) 1357 ISSD 2 019 20B4 2054
Capital Expenditure (WIP) 1D2 32B 122 17 7

Investments D D 0 5 5 0 55 0

Cash and Bank Balances 939 BS9 B97 745 B47
Net Current Assets 24 2 5 229D 2 592 2552 33 33

Total Assets 3BB4 42 5 9 4B33 53 02 50 4 4

Shareholder's Fu nds 3 517 3 BBS 4 2 5 0 492B 492B



m u s t

Notice is hereby given that the Fiftieth Annual General Meeting ofthe Members of Nannada Gelatines Umtted 
will be held on Monday, September 2011 at 12KX) noon, at hotel Narmada Jackson, South Civil lines, 
Jabalpur - 482001, to tra nsact the following businesses:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. ToGonslderandadopttheBalanceSheetasat31stMaich,2011, Profit & Loss Accountfortheyear 
ended on that date and the Report ofthe Directors' andthe Audttors' thereon

2. 10 declare dividend for the financial year ended March Bl, 2011
3. To appoint a director in place of Mn R.ICRaje, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re­

appointment

4. Appointment of Audtora

To consider and If thought fit, to pass with or without modificatlonfs) the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution;

"RESOLVED TTiAT M/s T.R.Chadha & Co., Chartered Accountants, be and are hereby appointed as 
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conduslon of this Annual General Meeting upto the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration as may be 
mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors, including service tax, 
out-of-podcet and trawelllrig expenses."

By O rd e r  of  t h e  B o a r d  of  Di r ect or s  

Fo r  N a r m a d a  G e l a t i n e s  Limited

P l a c e  ; J a b a l p u r  Mahesh Verma
D a t e ;  3'“ Augus t ,  2 0 1 1  C o m p a n y  S e c r e t a r y

R e g i s t e r e d  Of f ic e  ;

CARAVS, R o o m  No,  28

15,  Civil Lines,  J a b a l p u r  4 8 2 0 0 1



Notes:

a) The Register of Members and tbe Share Ttensfer Register will remain dosed from 12̂  ̂September to 19̂  
September 2011 (botb days Inclusive}.

b) Amember entitled to attend and vote attheAnnualGeneralMeetlng(themeetlng)lsentttledtoappolnta 
proxy to attend and vote on a poll Instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
The Instrument appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Meet1r>g.

c) Corporate members Intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are 
requested to send a certified copy ofthe Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend and 
vote on their behalf atthe Meetir^.

d) Members and proxy holders a re requested tobrlngthelrcoplesofAnnualReporttotheMeetlng.

e) Memberswhoholdsharesindematerialisedfbrmarereq uested to write theirdientlDandDPIDNumbers 
and those who hold shares In physical form are requested to write their Folio Number In the attendance slip 
for attending the Meeting.

f) In caseofjoint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who Is higher In the order of names will 
be entitled to vote.

g) Dividend on Equity Shares as recommended by the Board of Directors for the financial year ended Blst 
March, 2011 If declared at the meeting will be paid on or after 19'*' September, 2011 to those members 
whose names appear on the Company’s Register of members as on 19̂  ̂September, 2011 (Record date] 
subject however to the provisions of Section 206A of the Companies Act, 1956. In respect of shares held In 
electronic mode dividend will be paid on the basis of beneficial ownership as per details furnished by NSDL 
and CDSLfor this purpose.

h) Members are requested to notify Immediately any change of address and also particulars of their Bank 
Accounts viz. Name of Bank, Branch, complete address of the Bank and Account Number for prlndr  ̂the 
sameonthe Dividend Warra nts to avoid fraudulent encashment:
• to their Depository Partlcipants(DP)lnrespecttothelrElectronlcShare Account; and
• totheCompanyatlts Registered Office or to the Ri l̂stia rsandShare Transfer Agents oftheCbmpanyIn 

respect of their physical share holdings.

1) Any Memberdesirousofobtalnirtgany information on the Accounts oftheCompany,may please forward 
such queries In writing to the Company Secretary atthe Registered Office, at least ten days prior tothe date 
ofthe Meedrtg.

J) Asrequiredunderdause49(IV)(G)ofthe Listing Agreement wIththeStock Exchanges, the relevant details 
of persons seeking appointment/ re-appolntment as directors / whole time director are furnished In the 
Corporate Governance section ofthis An nual Report.



k) Members having multiple ledger folio In Identical name or Joint names In Identical order, are requested to 
Intimate to the Company or Its Registrars such ledger fbllofs) for consolldatir  ̂such multiple holdings Into 
slnel« account.

I) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A (S) of the Companies Act, 1956, (the Act), the unclaimed 
dividend / debenture interest / deberrture redemption amount for the year ended 31st March, 2004 and 
thereafter, which remain unclaimed for seven yeawil l  be transferred by the company to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (lEPF)establbhed under Section 205C of the Act. Members are requested 
to note that no dal ms shall lie against the Company or the I EPF In respect of any amounts which were 
unclaimed and unpaid fora period of seven years from the dates that they first became due for payment and 
no payment shall be made In respect of any such dalm. Tbe Company has already transferred the undalmed 
dividend and debenture interest and principal money for the year ended 31st March, 2003 to lEPF.

m) In terms of the provisions of Section 109A read with 109B ofihe Companies Act, 1956, a Member may 
nominate, at anytime. In the prescribed manner In Form No. 2B (vide Rules 4C0C and 5D of the Companies 
(Central Government's General Rules and Forms, 1956), a person to whom his/her shares In the Company 
shall vest In the event of his/her death. This may be sent to the Company Secretary atthe Registered Office, 
duly completed.

n) Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number ("RAN") by every participant In the securities market. Members hold1r>g shares In electronic form 
are therefore, requested to submit their RAN to their Depository Partidpants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their fVtN details 
totheCompany/Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. CB Management Services Pvt. Ltd.

o] The Ministry of Corporate Aflairs has taken a "Green Inltiatfve h  the Corporate Govemance* by allowing 
paperless compliances by the companies and has Issued circulars stating that service of notice / 
documents induding Annual Report can be sent by e-mall to Its members. Tb support this green Initiative 
of the Government, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to 
register their e-mall addresses, In respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their 
Gonoemed DeposltorY Participants. Members who hold shares In physical form are requested to send their 
e-mail addresses to the Company / Registrar and Share lhansfor Agents, M/s. CB Management Services 
Pvt.Ltd.

p] Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform the company's Rj îstrar and transfer agents M/s 
CB Management Services Pvt. Ltd Immediately of;
• charrge In the residents I status on retum to India for permanent settlement; and
• particulars of their Bank account maintained In India with complete name, branch, accourrt type, 

account no. and address ofthe bank, if not furnished earlier.

Place : Jabalpur OnJer of the Board of Directors
Date: 3"̂  August, 2011 ForNarmadaGelatinesUmlted

Mahesh Verma
Registered Office: Company Secretary
CARAVS, Room No. 2B 
15, avll Unes,
Jabalpur 482001



D IR E C T O R S ' R E P O R T  &  M A N A G E M E N T  D IS C U S S IO N  A N D  A N A L Y S IS

D e a r  S h a r e h o l d e r s ,

T he  Directors have pleasure in presenting t h e  5 0 t h  Annual Report  of your Company and t h e  Audited Accounts for t h e  
fin an d al y ea r e n  ded 31st  March,  2011,

Rs. Lacs

P rof i t  b e f o r e  Tax

P r o v i s io n  f o r  T axat ion;

C u r r e n t  

D e f e r r e d  Tax 

P rof i t  a f t e r  Tax

Bala  n e e  b r o u g h t  f o r w a r d  f r o m  last  y e a r  

Am o u n t  a v a i l a bl e  f o r  a p p r o p r i a t i o n

T r a n s f e r  t o  G e n e r a l  R e s e r v e  

P r o p o s e d  Di vi dend o n Equi ty S h a r e s  

Tax o n p r o p o s e d  d iv ide nd s  

Bala  n e e  c arr i ed  f o r w a r d

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 s t  M a r c h .  2 0 1 1

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 s t  M a r c h .  2 0 1 0

1 4 0 7 ,6 6 1 2 2 4 ,3 9

L 0 9
6 6 ) 4 6 0 ,4 3

4 0 7 ,4 0
( 0 ,8 9 ) 4 0 6 ,5 1

9 4 7 ,2 3
2 2 9 8 ,4 6
3 2 4 5 ,6 9

8 1 7 ,8 8
1 7 0 3 ,4 5
2 5 2 1 ,3 3

9 4 ,7 2
1 6 1 ,3 2

2 6 ,7 9

8 1 ,7 9
1 2 0 ,9 9

2 0 ,0 9
2 9 6 2 ,8 6 2 2 9 8 ,4 6

Global Economy and CompanvOvenflew:

Economic growth In the Industrialized nations was below average compared with Asia, with particularly India 
and China seeing above aver^  momentum. The year 2010-11 faced headwinds such as tbe Euro-zone debt 
crisis, politlcalturmoilinMiddleEastandthetwin catastrophes ofearthquakesandtsunamistriklrigJapan.

Tbe Indian eoonofny continues to be on a strong growth trajectory with an estimated growth of 8.6% in real GDP 
fbr the 2010-11 fiscal as compared to a 8.0% growth for 2009=-10 fiscal. The agriculture, forestry and fishing 
sector witnessed a surge In fbcal 2010-11, with growth of 5.4% as compared to 0̂ 4% for fiscal 2009-10. The 
manufacturing sector continued to post good performance with growth estimates at 8.8% for both fiscal 2009- 
10 and 2010-11. The services sector was the out performer with estimated growth at 9.6% for fiscal 2010-11 
although this was sllghtfy less than 10.1% for fiscal 2009-10. Per capita Income in real terms (at 2004-05 prices) 
during fiscal 2010-11 witnessed an uptick, growing by 6.7% in fiscal 2010-11 as compared to 6.1% in fiscal
2009-10.

Although GDP growth remained strong, high levelsof inflation throughout the year played spoilsport, osdllating 
within a band of 11% to 8%. This led to several rounds of Irrterest rate hikes bythe Reserve Bank to curb inflation 
and prevent overheating ofthe economy. In addition, inflation in food articles touched peak of 20-21% during 
the months of May-June 2010 and continued to remain In double digits throughout the year. All round high 
Irrfiatlon in commodities and manufactured products led to significant increase In input costs across the



sectors, in addition, crude prices moved up, which also had an Impact on transportation costs, hydro carbon 
linked In puts and packagirtg oosts. Overall, FY201O-11 was a very Ghallengir  ̂year in terms of Input cost inflation 
and manaeliV material costs.

Ybur company was able to weather the effect of increased input costs through calibrated price increases, 
strateglcstocklngof raw materials and prudent buying.

Financial Highllglits

Your company recorded another year of growth, both In revenue and profits. Sales Increased to Rs. 96.48 crores 
from Rs 87.53 crores In the previous year registering a growth of 10.2%. Earnings before interest, taxes and 
depreciation Increased to Rs 15.81 crores from 13.81 crores In 2009-10, an Increase of 14.5%. Profit after tax 
(PAT) was at Rs 9.47 crores for 2010-11 as compared to Rs 8.17 crores In the previous year, up by 15.9%. 
Consequerrtly,theEamingspefshare was atRs23.49for2010-llascomparedtoRs20.28in 2009-10.

Based on its intrinsic strength In terms of quality manufacturing process, distribution strength and customer 
relationships, your Company continues to build the business keeping long-term goals In perspective. 
Rationalising and streamlining operations to bring about efficiencies and reducing costs remains the 
manasemertt'stop priority.

Dividends

Ybur Directors recommend a dividend of Rs. Ai~ per Equity Share (last year Rs. 3/- per Equity Share) for the 
financia I year ended March 31,2011.

The tota I outflow on accountof the proposed dividend IncludlngdMdend distribution tax will be Rs. I88.ll lacs, 
(previousyear Fts. 141.08 lacs).

The dividend on equity shares. If approved at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will be paid to Members 
whose nanKS appear In the Register of Members as on IŜ  September, 2011 and to Members whose names 
appear on that date as Beneficial Owners as fumbhed by National Securttfes Depository Limited (NSDL) and 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

Transfer to Reserves

It is proposed to transfer an amount of Rs. 94.72 lacs (being 10% of the net profits for the year) to the General 
Reserve. An amount of Rs. 664.40 lacs out of the profits forthe year under review Is propo^ to he retained in 
the Proflt and Loss account.

Industry Structure and Demlopnienis

The rapid growth of the Pharmaceutical Industry In India and across the world has resulted In stable demand for 
Gelatine.

However, the year under review witnessed an unprecedented shortage for raw materials. The impact of the 
global economic recession on tbe export of meat and meat products from the country resulted In a lower 
availability of raw material In India. This resulted In a steep Increase In the raw material costs.



OpportunltlM and Thm ts

Following ttie representations made to Office International des Epizooties, Paris [OIQ, the status of India has 
now been upgraded to "Negligible Risk". This will help the Indian gelatine Industry to export products 
worldwide.

The level of awareness about environmental hazards has Increased among the general public and the state 
authorities are upgrading pollution control norms regularly. The Industry Is now required to address the Issue of 
environment with more commitment, four oompany has taken necessary steps to meet these challenges 
effectively.

Capadty Utllitatlon

The capacity utilisation of gelatine production by your Company was 99% ̂ in st the industry average of around 
80%.

Oudook

The company's actions to improve productivity and enhance the production capacity has started yielding better 
results. Barring any unforeseen drtumsta nces, your company should continue to perform well.

To meet the increased demand, your company is going for expansion of gelatine plant capadty. it is expected that 
the enhanced production will come Into effect from December 2011.

Risks and Conoams

Poor availability of raw materials which meets the requirement for gelatine intended for human consumption is 
a cause of concern. This could result in an unstable situation on raw material front. As a consequence of 
Increased raw material prices, the domestic prices of finished goods are at a peak; hence further Increase in 
domestic prices could lead to import of gelatine. This is already happening to some extent, but recent trends 
Indicate that Imports have Increased as compared tothe previousyear.

The expansion of capadty by othengelatine manufacturers and proposed setting up of new units in near future 
may also lead to a situation of Increased competition and pressure on raw material availability.

Segmentwlse or praductwTse performance

Tho company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of gelatine, ossein and dioldum  phosphate 
which broadly form part of one product group and hence a single business segment However, based on 
geographical factors, reportable segment have been identified as exports sales and domestic sales. The 
segment revenue information is given separately in Schedules to Accounts under the disclosure as required 
under Acoou nt1r>g Sta ndard 17 - Segment ReportlngandformpartoftheDlrectors’ Report



IntamalGmtrol System

Ttie Company has a well placed, proper and adequate internal control system, comprising supervision, checks 
and balances, polides, procedures and internal audit which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and 
protected and that the transactions a re authorised, recorded and reported oorrertly. The system Is reviewed and 
updated on an ongoing basis. Ttie Group Internal Audit team continues to support the Internal audit function.

Tbe Company's Internal control system comprises audit and compliance of observations made by the Internal 
Auditors.

The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of Internal controb and concurrently audit the 
majority of the transactions in value terms. Independence of the audit and Gompliance is ensured by direct 
reportlngoflntemalAudltDlvblonandlnternalAuditorstotheAudlt Com mittee of the Boa rd.

Human Rjtsouroes

Retalnlr  ̂high performir  ̂talent has been the prime focus. The Company has made a conoerted effort to match 
industry compensation normsin orderto retain dedicated andskilled employees.
As In the past. Industrial relations continued to remain cordial. The oompany has entered Into a fresh wage 
agreement withtheUnionforthenext seven years.

Fixed Depoelts

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public, and as on 
March 31,2011 the Company had no unclaimed deposits or Interest thereon due to any depositor.

Subsidiary Company

TbeCompanydoesnothaveany subsidia ry com pany.

Group for Tnur s« TTOnsfor of Shares

Pursuant to an intimation received from the Promoters, under Clause 3 (1) (e) of Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997, persons constituting Group forthe 
purpose of avalllr>g exemption from applicability of the provblons of Regulation 10 to 12 of aforesaid SEBI 
Regulations, are furnished under Note No. B - 10 of Schedule 17 - Notes on Accounts, forming part of the 
Accounts.

Directors

In accordance with the provblons of the Companies Act, 19S6, artd Artide IIS cf the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Ms. Kiran Chhabria and Mr. R.K. Rqje, Directors, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meetfngof thecompany. The Board places on record Its appreciation for their services to the company.



Mr. R.K. Raje, being eligible, offers himself for re-appolntment. Your Board of Directors recommends his re­
appointment.

Attention of Shareholders is invited to tbe relevant items ofthe Notice of tbe Annual General Meeting and the 
Notes thereto.

Brief resume ofthe Directors proposed to be appointed / reappointed, nature cf their expertise in specific 
functional areas and names of companies in whkh they hold directorship and membership / chairmanship of 
committees of the Board, as stipulated under Gause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, are 
given in the section on Corporate Governance elsewhere in theAnnual Report

All the appointments of the Directors ofthe Company are in compliance with the provisions of Section Z74fl]{g) 
ofthe Companies Act 1956.

Mractors' Responsibility StatMMnt

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) ofthe Companies Act 1956, with respect to Directors' 

Responsibility Statement It Is hereby confirmed:

I. That in the preparation of accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2011, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relatlr>g to material 
departures, ifany;

II. That the Djnectors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so far as to give a true and lair view ofthe 
stateof affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and the profTt and loss of the Company fbr 
theyear under review;

IIL That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenanoe of adequate accounting 
records in acoorxfance with the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets ofthe 
Company and pmventlr>gand detecdngfraud and other Irregularities;

IV. That the Directors havepreparedtheaccountsfortheflnanclalyearended31stMarch,2Dllona'golng 
concern'basb.

Auditors and Audt Report

M/s T.R. Chadha & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, hold office until the 
Gonclusfonof ensuing Annual General Meetlngandare eligible for reappointment.

The Company has reoeived letterfrom them to the effect that their reappointment. If made, would be within the 
prescribed limits under Section 224(1B) ofthe Companies Act, 1956 and that they are not disqualified for such 
re-a ppointment withinthemeaningofSection226(:rfthesaid Act

The Notes on Accounts referred to in the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any 
further comments.



TTOnster erf Unpaid and UndaTmedantounlsto lEPF

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A(S) ofthe Companies Act, 19B6, the dedared dividends and Interest 
on debentures which remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7 years have been transferred by the 
Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (I EPF) established by the Central Sovemment pursuant 
to Section 205C of thesald Act.

The Company has transferred Rs. 1,69,836 -̂to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, being the unclaimed 
3rd and Final Debenture Redemption for the year2002-03.

Corporate Governance

Ybur Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the 
requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India's Corporate Governance practices.

Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock 
Exchanges forms part of th Annual Report. The Whole-Tlme Director's declaration regarding compliance with 
the Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Managemerrt Personnel forms part of 
Report on Corporate Governance. The requisite certificate from M/s T.R. Chadha & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
Statutory Audttors ofthe Company conflrmirtg compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, ss 
stipulated underthe aforesaid Clause 49, is annexed to this Report.

EneigyConservadottrlbchnology Absorption and Forajgn Exchange Eemings and Outgo

Thepartlcularsrelatlngtoenergy conservation, technology a bsorptlon, foreign excha ngeearnlngsand outgo, as 
required to be disclosed under Section 217{l)(e] of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies 
(Disclosure of Particulars In the Report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are provided in the Annexure to this 
Report.

Employees

None of the employee of the Company is in receipt of remuneration estceeding the limit prescribed under 
Section 217(2A] of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules 1975. 
Details of managerial remuneration under section 198 of the Act, are furnished under Note No. B - 22 of 
Sched u le 17 - Notes on Accounts, formlngpaitoftheAccounts.

industrial RriatToitt

Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year. Your Directors also place on record their sincere 
appreciation ofthe significant contributions ntade, and the continued support extended, by all employees at all 
levels to the Company's operations duringthe year.



A d c iW w lM te M IM n t

Ybur Directors take this opportunity to ttiank ttie Central and the State Governments, statutory authorities, 
bankers, vendors and buslnessassoclatesandtheshareholdersfbr their continued Interest and valued support.

For and on behalf of the Eioard

R.K.ime A.K. Kapur
Dfractor Wholedme Director

Place: Jabalpur 
Date : August S"*, 2011



Annemjreto DTrectoni' RefMirt

L Particulars required under Ttie Companies (Disclosure o f Particulars In the Report of Board of Directors), 
Rules, 1B8S

A. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

L  Spedfk Area Tn which R&D carried out by the Company:
(a) RecoveryofCalclumChlorldeftomefnuent
(b) Use of aTtemative raw materia I for gelatine prod uction.

2. Benefttsderhed as a result of above R&D:
TTie research and development efforts are still on for both the above projects.

3. Future Plan of Action:
Theaboveprojectswill continue tobepursuedwlthavlewtoalsooom m erclallsethesam e.

4. Exp«ndituraonR&D
Recurring Rs. 29,15,5«; Capital Expenditure- Rs. 4,26,430 
Total R&D Expend Iture as a % of Total Tumoven 035%

B. TECHNOLOfirABSORFnON, ADOPTION AND INNOVAnON

L  Efforts In brief made fowardstechnolosy absorptiotv adoption and innovation;
(a) Dbposal of lime waste as per environmental norms at lower cost,
(b) Reduction In coal consumptionlnunitgelatineprod uction.

2. Benefttsderhed as a result of above eflbits:
(a) Better environmental conditions.
(b) Saving In stea m cost In unit gelatl n production.

3. in case of Imported technology (Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the 
flnaniial year foilowing InfonnatTon may be furnished:

(a) Technology
(b) Ybaroflmport
(c) Hastechnologybeenfollyabsorbed
(d) lfnotfullyabsorbed,areaswherethls 

has nottaken place, reasons thereof 
andfiftureplan of action

Notapplicableasno 
technology Imported



4. ForaTgnEHchangeEamlnfs and Outgo

The F.O.B. value of exports amounted to Rs. 228.07 lacs against Rs459.41 lacs in the previous year.
The expenditure in foreign exchange comprises import of raw materials Rs. 57.24 lacs, travel for export 
promotion Rs. 0.63 lacs and other eixpenditure Rs. 35.36 lacs.

For and on behalf of the Board

R.K. Ra)e A .K. Kapur 
nrector Whol«tini« Diractor

Place: Jabalpur 
Date : August3"*, 2011



Social wellara and community development Is at the core ofthe Company’s CSR philosophy and this continues 
to be a top priority. The Company’s executives interact with the neighbouring community on regular basis. The 
Company's contrlbutfons to the community are In the areas of health, education, Infiestructuie development 
(drlnldr  ̂water. Improving village Infrastructure, helping poor students, etc.), environ ment (effluent treatment, 
tree plantation, treatmertt of hazardous waste, etc.), relief and assistance in the event of a natural disaster and 
contributions to other social development organisations. The Company also supports and partners with several 
NGOs in community development and health initiatives. Some of the sodal actaVrties carried out by the 
Companyare asunder;

Environment

The Company is fully compliant with various environmental protection and health and safety laws and 
regulations. In its constant endeavour to adhere to regulatory standards, the Company has instituted a 
compliance management system, which ensures full compliance to all applicable legal requirements.

The company has installed one of the most efficient effluent treatment plants to treat effluents In the form of 
solid waste, water or airibrthe protection of environment. The effluent generated duringthe prxxxss Is organic 
in nature and is treated utilizing anaerobic and aerobic processes. The company is a pioneer in utilizing 
anaerobic process ibr gelatine effluent The Bio-gas generated Is utilized as partial replacement of furnace oil in 
hot air generator.

Keeping harmony with nature as a guiding principle, plantation of trees, maintenance of green belts and 
gardens in and around the manufacturing unit, mangrove plantation in the factory premises, vermi-compost of 
waste and Its use as manure, recycling of treated water In cooling water system and In horticulture activities, etc. 
are regular activities undertaken bythe Company.

The Company celebrated the Worid Environment Day and created environmental awareness amongst 
employees and surrounding communities. Plantation In rural areas on a large scale were also undertaken. The 
Company contributed in various programmes oiganized to ban the usage of Polythene in Bheraghatarea.

Clean Narmada Green Jabalpur programme: TheCompany and its employees regularly promote and participate 

In projects for cleanliness of river Narmada through cleaning banks, putting up fleK, banners and wall painting 
messages. The Company participated in programmes for the cleaning of Gwarlghat, Tllwaraghat, Saraswatlghat 
and Bheraghat banks ofthe river Narmada and also made contribution to the International River Festival.

Hedtti

All employees undergo regular periodic medical examinations. The company has a tie-up with a local Hospital 
wherein factory employees receive medical treatment as and when required.

The com penymalntalnsFlrstAldiacllltyandadlspensarywithinthefactorY premises.



Sodal Responsibility and Community Deuelopnient

TheCompanyarraneesforsupplyofdrinkinewaterinthe surrounding villages andhasibrthe purpose, arrar^ed 
fbrlnstalleddrlnking water oonnectlonsinvlllageKbdanandBllha.

In addition, the Company provides drinking water at various locations around the factory durfng the summer 
season.

TheCompanyalsooontrlbutesfundsforthema rrlage ofpoorglrfsofthesurroundlngvlllaBes.

Education

Education continues to be one of the focus areas of social development for the Company. The Company 
provides assistance to schools such as "Parlvartan”, Asha School, Ekal Vidyalaya. The Company supports 
academics and education at all levels, prxwldes scholarships to poor gfrls of the locality. The oompany also 
provides educational support to various poor children through contributions to "Pahel Sanstha" Charitable 
Institution and Hamara Jabalpur for ”Ballka Prothsahan YoJanaV The Company has also aided the repairs and 
maintenance of schools located In the near by villages.

Relglous and cultural programs

The Companv has contrfbuted to various local religious and cultural programmes such as Narmada Mahotsav, 
Kartlk Mahotsav, Narmada Kumbh, Maa Narmada SamaJIk Kumbh.

During the traditional Navratri Qarba festival, the Company contributed to various programs. Financial 
assistance and support was given to community festivals such as Durga PuJa, Ravidas Jayanti, VIshwakarma 
Puja.

Community Healthcare

The Company conducts regular health check-ups, medical diagnostic camps, cataract operative camps, 
distributes medicines and spectacles to large number of patients in the neighbouring villages of Jabalpur. The 
Company arranges for sprinkling of medicines and Insecticides In the surrounding villages to prevent diseases 
and to promote cleanliness.



REPORT OH CORPORATE GQVERHAWCE

Ttie Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) ushered In a formal code of corporate governance 
(hereinafter "the Code") through Clause 49 in the Listing Agreement executed by the Company with stock 
exchanges. Clause 49 lays down several corporate governance practices which listed companies are required to 
adopt. The Code has been periodically upgraded to ensure the adoption of best corporate governance practices. 
This report sets out the compliance status of the Company with the requirements of corporate governance, as 
setoutlnClause49,ibrtheflnanclal yea r 2010-11.

L  Company's Phiiosophv on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is essentially a system by which companies are directed and controlled by the 
management in the best Interest of the stakeholders and others. Corporate Governance ensures fairness, 
transparency and integrity ofthe management and Is a way of IHe, ratherthan a mere legal compulsion.

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance is critical to enhance and retain Investors' trust. 
The Board of Directors exerdses Its flduciary duties In tbe widest sense of tbe term. The Company 
endeavors to enhance lortgtemn shareholder value and respects minority rights In all Its business decisions.

Our disclosures a I ways seek to attain the best practices in Corporate Governance. Ouractfonsare governed 
by our values and principles, which are reinforced at all levels within the Company. We are committed to 
doing thir^  in the right way which means taking business decisions and acting in a way that is ethical and is 
In compliance with the applicable legal requirements. We acknowledge our individual and collective 
responsibilities to ma nage ourbusinessactivitieswithintegrrty.

In addition to complying with the statutory requirements, effective governance systems and practices 
towards improving transparency, disclosures. Internal control and promotion of ethics at work place have 
been Institutionalized. The Company recognizes thatgood governance is a continuing exercise.

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive and Independent Non- 
Executlve Directors who have an In-depth knowledge of business. In addition to the expertise In their areas 
of specialization. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance and an independent view to the 
Company's management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees induding the Executive Director. In 
addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Its Non-Executive Directors. The Code has been 
circulated to all the members of the Board and senior management and affirmation Is received from all the 
membersofBoardandthesenlorma nagen>ent staff rega rding its com pllance.



2. B o a r d  o f  D i r e c t o r s
A. Board Coinposltlan, afttondanoe of Dlredon at Board Meetlrtg!:, Last Annual General Meetfog and 

numbor of oth«r DltKtorsh(ps and ChaTrmanshlp*/ Mambanhlps of Commlttaaa of oaeh DIrtetor 
In various companies:

(I) The Company's policy Istonfialntaln optimum combination of Executive a nd Non-Executive Directors, which 
b In conformity with the requirement of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered Into with the Stock 
Exchanges, The Company has 7 Directors of which six are Non-Executive Directors, out of which three are 
Independent Directors.

C o m p o s i t i o n  of  t h e  B o a r d  of  D i re c t o rs  is as fol l ows;

Category
Prom oter [director

Executive D irector

Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors

Independent Directors

Name o f the  Directors
Ms. Kiran M . Chhabria

Mr. Ashok K. Kapur

Mr. Sanjeev Jain 
Mr. R.K. Raje

Justice Gulab Gupta 
Mr. Deepak Chaudhuri 
Mr. M. C. Pant

(li) None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5 
Committees as spedfied In Clause 49 of the ListingAgreement, across all the companies In which he/she b a 
Director. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as at March 31, 
2011 have been made bythe Directors.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, Last Annual General Meeting and number of other 
Directorships and Chairmanships / Memberships cf Committees of each Director In various companies is 
given below.

Name o f D irec to r No. of o ther 
D irectorsh ips

Com mittees 
o f which he/ she is 

a m em ber

Com mittees 
o fw h ic h  h e / she is 

Chairperson

Attendance

Board
M eetings

Last AGM 
(21.09.2010)

Ms. Kiran M. Chhabria 1 - - - No

M r Sanjeev Jain 3 3 - 4 Yes

M r Deepak Chaudhuri - 1 - 3 No

Justice Gulab G upta - 3 1 4 Yes

M r M.G. Pant - 3 1 4 Yes

M r R. K. Raje 4 5 1 3 Yes

M r A.K.Kapur 1 1 - 4 Yes

Notes;
The DtnectorsMps hetd by Directors as mentioned abov  ̂do not /ndude Aftemate Dtrectofshlfa and Dlrectorsh  ̂c f  
fbre^  CbmpanteSrSectldn2SCdinpantesandPrlvateUmttedCoinpanlei.
tn accordance with Clause 4S, Membershfp̂ /Chairmanships of only the Audit CommittBes and Sharehatders'/ 
tm/estofs' GiidvarKe Committees afcii Public Umited Compani  ̂hove been considered.



Directors'Profile

A brief resume of DirectoKs) being reappointed, nature of their expertise In specific functional areas and 
names of oonnpanles In which they hold directorships, memberships/ chairmanships of Board Committees 
and their shareholding In the Company are provided below;

Mr. Ravindra K Raje Is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He Is also a 
qualified Company Secretary and a Bachelor of Law. He has an experience of 35 years in industry and 
consultancy assignments.

He is presently on the Board of GWL Properties Limited, Harshit Finlease St Investments Pvt. Ltd., Jerom 
Trading & Investment Pvt. Ltd., Jumbo World Holdings {India] Ltd., Jumbo Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd., 
MPIL Corporation Ltd., Firestorm Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd., Prlmo Enterprises Private Ltd., SMN 
Engineers Ltd., L'Aqulla Investments Co. Pvt. Ltd., Phonegarage.com (India) Pvt. Ltd., VIman Investments 
Pvt. Ltd., Wlzer Advertising Pvt Ltd., Aasman Management Servloes Pvt. Ltd.

Heboldsl27equltysharesofthe com panyason3lstMarch,20ll,

B. Board Meetings

Durlr^ the year ended 31* March, 2011 the Company held four Board meetings. The Company has held 
at least one Board meeting in every three months and the maximum time gap between any such two 
meetings was not more than four months. The details ofthe Board meetings held a r« as under;

SI.No. Date Board Strength No. of D irectors Present
1 IS™ IVlav 2010 7 S
2 12™ August, 2010 7 5
3 09™ November, 2010 7 5
4 07™ February, 2011 7 S

Infonnation placed before Board of Directors

The Board of Directors are provided with all the IrribrTnatlon and update on the subjects detailed under and
have complete access to any information within the Company.

* Annual operating plans a nd budgets a nd any updates.
■ capital budgets and any updates.
* Quarterly results forthe oompany.
* Mi n utes of meetings of audit committee andothercommitteesoftheboard.
* Showcause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, whlcharemateriallylmportarTt
* Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any materia leffluentorpollutlon problems.
* Any materia ldefaultinfinancialobligat1onstoandbythecompaniy,orsu bsta ntia I non-payment for goods 

sold by the company.
* Any Issue, which Involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, Includirtg any 

judgement or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the company or taken an 
adverse view regarding another enterprise that can have negative implications on the company.



• Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any slgnlfkarrt development In Human 
RiesourcGs/ Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Vblurrtary 
Retirement Scheme etc.

• Saleofmaterlalnature,oflnvestments, assets, whlciilsnotlnthenormalGourseof business.
• Norhcomplia nee of a ny regulatory, statutoryorlistingrequirementsandsbarebolders service such as 

non-paymentof dividend, delay In share transfers, etc.

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of four Non-Executive Directors viz.. Justice Gulab Gupta, Mr. Deepak 
Chaudhuri, Mr. R.K. Raje and Mr. M.c. Pant Mr. Gulab Gupta, an Independent Non-Executive Director Is 
theChalrmanoftheAudit Com mitlee.

Mr. R.K. Raje possesses expert financial and accounting knowledge and Is a Fellow member of the Institute 
of Cha rtered Accountants oflndia. Heisalsoaqualified Company Secretary a nd a Bachelor of Law.

The composition ofthe Audit Committee meets with the requinemerrts ofSection 292A of the Companies 
Act, 1956and Clause 49.

The objective of the Audit Committee Is to assist the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality 
and integrity of the accounting, auditing and reporting practices ofthe Company and its compliance with 
the legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee's purpose Is to oversee the accounting and financial 
reporting process of the Company, the audits of the Company's financial statements, the appointment, 
independence, performance and remuneration of the statutory auditors, the performance of Intemal 
auditorsandtheCompany'sriskma nagement policies.

The terms of reference oftheAuditCommltteearebroadlyasunder:

A  Reviewing the financial reports and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
flnandal statements reflect a true and feir position and that sufficient and credible Information as 
disclosed in the reports.

+ Recommendfng the appointment and removal of ©eternal auditors, fixation of audit fee and other 
payments.

+ Reviewing the financial statements and draft audit report induding quarterly / half yearly financial 
infonnation.

+ Reviewing wfthmanagementthequarterivandannualflnandal statements before submission to the 
Board focusing primarily on;
* anychangeslnaooountlngpolldesandpractkes;
* majoraccountingentriesbasedonexercise of Judgment by ma nagemerrt;
* quallflcatlonsindraftauditreport;
* slgniflcantadjustmerrtsarlsingout of audit;
* the going concern assumption;
* compllancewlth account1r>gstandards;
* GompHancewithstock exchange and lega I requirements conoerningfl nandal statements;



A

X

X

• Any related party transactions as per Accounting Standard IB.
• Reviewing the Company'sflnancial and risk management policies.
• DIsclosureofcontlngentliabNItles.

Reviewing with the management and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems. 
Revlewlngtheadequacy of internal audit function. Including the audit chatter, approval of the audit plan 
and Its execution, coverage and frequency oflntemalaudlL 
Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findir^ and follow-up thereon.
Reviewing the findings of any Internal Investigations by the Internal auditors Into matters where there Is 
suspected fraud or Irregularity or a failure of Internal control systems of a material nature and reporting 
the nwtter tothe Board.

L  Looklnglrrtothe reasons for su bstantla I defaults In payments to the shareholders [In case of non­
payment dedared dividends)and creditors.

The Audit Committee Meetings are usually attended by the Whole Time Director, Head of Finance & 
Accounts Department, and representatives of the StatutoryAuditors and Internal Auditors. The Company 
Secretary acts as Secretary ofthe Aud It Committee.

The previous Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 21st September, 2010. The Chairman of 
the Audit Committee, JustloeGulabGupta attended the Meetl ng.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held duringthe year. The details ofthe meetings are asunder;

SI.No. Date Committee Strength No. of IVfembers Present
1 i s ”  Mav 2010 4 4
2 12" August, 2010 4 2
2 09" Novembet-, 2010 4 2
4 07" February, 2011 4 4

T h e  c o m p o s i t i o n  o f t h e A u d i t  C o m m i t t e e  and  p a r t i cu la rs  of  m e e t i n g s  a t t e n d e d  by t h e  m e m  hers  of  t h e  Audit  

Com m i t t e e a r e g i v e n  b e l o w ;

A t t e n d a n c e  of  e a c h  M e m b e r a t t h e  Audit  Com m i t t e e  m e e t i n g s  h e l d  d u r i n g t h e  ye ar ;

S . N o . N a m e N o .  o f  m e e t i n g s  a t t e n d e d
1 M r .  D e e p a k  C h a u d h u r i 3
2 J u s t i c e  G u l a b  G u p t a 4
2 M r .  R . K .  R a j e 3
4 M r  M . C .  P a n t 4

4. Remuneration Committee

I) The Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee of Directors,

li) The broad termsofteferenceoftbe Remuneration Committee are as under;

a] 10 approve the remuneration and Incentive remuneration payableto the Whole-Tlme Director for each 
financialyear;

b) To a pprove anychangein Director's Sitting fees fbrattendlngtheBoard / Com mittee Meetings and such 
other matters as the Board may from time to time request the Remuneration Committee to examine 
and recommend/approve.



111) Ttie oofn position oftheRemuneratloti Committee andthedetailsof meetings attended bythemembers 
of tbe Remuneration Committee are given below;

Ttie Remuneration Committee comprises of tiie following Directors:
Mr. DeepakChaudhuri Chairman
JustlceGulabGupta Member
Mr. M.C. Pant Member

One Remuneration Committee meetir>g was held duringthe year as detailed below:

D a t e Com m i t t e e  S t r e n g t h No.  o f  M e m b e r s  P r e s e n t

1 2  ' ^August ,  2 0 1 0 3 3

Dataib of Remunaration and other tenms of appointment of DTrectors;

The aggregate valueof the salary and perquisites paid for the year ended 31st March, 2011 to the Whole- 
Time Director was Rs. 28.35 lacs. Besides this, the Whole Time Director is entitled to Gratuity and 
encashment of leave at the end of tenure of service. The current agreement with the Whole-tlme 
Director is for a period of 3 years from the dateof appointment and can be terminated by either party by 
giving three months' notice in writing.

The Non-Executive Directors were paid sitting foe atthe rate of Rs. 4000/-for attending each meetir^ of 
the Board and Rs. lOOO/- is paid as sitting foes to Committee members for attending each committee 
Meeting ofthe Directors.

5. Shareholders'Grievances Committee

The Shareholders' Grievances Committee ofthe Company consists ofthe following Directors;

Mr. M.C. Pant (Chairman)
JustlceGulabGupta 
Mr. A. K. Kapur

Mr. Mahesh Verma, Company Secretary Is the Cdmpilance Officer for complying with the requirements 

of SEBI Regulations and the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges in India and overseeing the 
Investors' grievances. The Board has delegated the power of approving transfor of shares / Issue of 
d u plicate certifkates etc. to the Whole Time Directorand Company Secretary.

Durirvg the year, eleven Investor complaints were received by the Company. As on 3lst March, 2011 
there were no complaints pending reply.

6. CodeofBusTnessConducI ft Ethics

The Code of Business Conduct & Ethics Cthe Code'), Is adopted by the Board, is a comprehensive Code 
applicable to all Directors and Senior management personnel. The Code while lay1r>gdown. In detail, the 
standards of bus! ness conduct, etiiics and governance, centres on the following theme:



The Company's Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel are responsible ibr conduct of the 
business, and are committed to setting the standards of conduct contained In this Code and for updating 
these standards, as appropriate, to ensure their continuing relevance, effectiveness and responsiveness to 
the needs of local and International Investors and all other stakeholders as also to reflea corporate, legal 
and regulatory developments. The Code has been circulated to all the members of tbe Eioard and 
management personnel and the compliance of the same is affirmed by them annually. A declaration s^ned 
bythe Whole time Director ofthe Company Is given below:

This Is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Condua fbr its Directors and employees of the 
Company.

Compliance with the Cbcte <yf Conduct
I ooiTflrm that the Company has. In respea of the financial year ended March 31,2011, received ftom the 
senior ntanagementteam of the Company and the Membersof the Board, a declaration of compliance with 
the Code of Condua asappllcabletothem.
Ashok K Kapur 
WholeTtme Director

7. General Body MMtlngs

Location, date and time of the Annual General Meetings held during the preceding 3 years and the Special 
Resol utions passed thereatareasfbl lows;

Ypar Date & Time Soecial Resolutions
4 / ” 2007-08 Hotel Narmada Jackson 

South Civil Lines, 
Jabalpur

Friday,
19’ " September, 2008 
at 12:30 p.m,

None

48’ " 2008-09 Hotel Narmada Jackson 
South Civil Lines, 
Jabalpur

Tuesday,
8th September, 2009 

at 12:30 p.m,

For re-appoi ntment of Sh ri Ashok K. 
KapurastheW holeTim e Director of 
the Company.

49’ " 2009-10 Hotel Satya Ash oka, 
Wright Town, 
Jabalpur

Tuesday,
21”  September, 2010

For re-appoi ntment of Sh ri Ashok K. 
KapurastheW holeTim e Director of 
theCompany,

During the year ended 31st March, 2011, there were no resolutions passed by the Company's members 
through Poistal Ballot Atthe ensuing Annual General Meeting also, there is no resolution proposed to be 
passed through Posta I Ballot.

S. Disclosures

a. Disdosura on materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. Promoters, Directors or 
Management, their subsidiaries or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflia with the interest of 
the Company at large ;



There are no mateilallv signiflcant related party transactions of the Company which have potential 
conflict with the Interest of the Company, as all the related party transactions are on arms lertgth basis 
and in the best Interest ofthe Company. Attention ofthe Shareholders Is drawn to the disclosures of 
trensactions with the related parties set out in Notes to Accounts Schedule 18, fomiing part of the Annual 
Report.

b. The Whole-Tlme Director (CEO) and the Head of Finance have certified to the Board in accordance with 
Clause 49 (V)oftheUstir^ Agreeinentldrthe vearended31stMarch2011.

c. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
ExchangesorSEBIoranystatutoryauthorltyonany matter relatedtocapltalma rkets duringthelastthree 
years

There have been no Instances of non-compliance with any legal requirements nor have been any 
strictures imposed by the Stock Exchange, SEBI etc, on any matters relating to the capital market over the 
last three years.

9. Means of ComiminicMTon

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results of the Company are sent to Stock Exchanges 
Immediately after they are approved by the Board. These are widely published In leading 
financial/non4inancial newspapers generally in Financial Express/Hrtvada and Navbharat/Dainik Bhaskar/ 
R̂ j E x p r ^  Nal Dun W H a rf Bhoomi having all-India coverage.

Annual Results: Annual Report containing inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Directors' Report, Auditors' 
Report, Notice of Annual General Meeting with explanatory notes and other Important annexure / 
Inf^mation is circulated to members and other entitled thereto.

SEBI EDIFAR; Annual reports, quarterly results, shareholding pattern, etc. of the Company are also posted on 
the SEBI website corpflllng,co,ln Management DiscusslonandAnalysisfbrmspartofiheAnnual Report.

iJtk General Shareholders' Information

Annual General Meeting

Day & Date
Time
Venue

Monday IB'*' September, 2011 
12:00 noon.
Hotel Narmada Jackson 
South Dvil lines, Jabalpur 
Jabalpur

Financial Calendar 20U-2012

First Quarter Result 
Second Quarter Results 
Third Quarter Results 
Annual Results for the year ending 
on 3tst March, 2012

By 15th August 2011 
By 15th November, 2011 
By 15th February, 2012

By 30th May 2012



* Book aonire period

* Dividend paymenl date

12* September, 2011 to 19* September 2011 
(both days Irtduslve]

Dlvfdends as recommended by the Board of Directors, If declared at 
the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on or after 19̂  
September, 2011 to those shareholders, whose names appear on 
the Com pany’s Register ofMembersonl9*September,2011.

* Listing ofShares and other Securities

Name of Stock Exchar>ge($}

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited(BSE) 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy lOwers, Dalai Street 
Mumbai-400 001

* StockCode

Scrip Coda; BombayStock Exchange (BSE) "526739"
Convany Symbol: NARMADA GELA

* Stock Market Date

The monthly high/ low market pn'ces of the shares duhng the year 2010-11 at the Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited (BSE) were as under;

(Rs. pershare)

Months Hiah Pnce LowPrke

April 2010 104.50 94.60
May 2010 103.05 82.05
June 2010 96.00 84.70
July 2010 112.00 89.50
August 2010 100.00 82.00
September 2010 104.95 92.50
October 2010 105.00 96.00
November 2010 118.00 85.10
December 2010 100.90 86.00
January 2011 99.00 75.00
February 2011 90.00 71.00
March 2011 90.00 75.60

(S o u rc e  BS E w e b s ite )



Share price performance compared with brood based Indices
BSE

Company's Share Price As on 01.04.2010 99.00
As on 31.03 J D l l 83.50
Change -15.66%

BSE Sensex As on 01.04.2010 17,555.04
As on 31.03.2011 19,445.22
Change 10.77%

* Performartce of Shane prfce in comparison to the BSE Sensex

* RegTstrir&Share Transfer Agents

C B Management Services Pvt. Ltd.
P̂ 22, Bondel Road, Kolkata TOO019. 
Phone: (033)22806692-93-94 
Fax; (033) 2287 0263 
Email; cbmsll@cal2.vsnl.net In

* Dividend declared for the last five years

]E£ai On 9% Cumulative Preference Shares
2006-07 9%
2007-08 9%
2008-09 9% (Pro-rata)
2009-10 NA
2010-11 NA

On Eauitv Shares 
15%
2 0 %

25%
30%
40% (Proposed)

mailto:cbmsll@cal2.vsnl.net


Share Tfonsfer System:

Shares sent for transfer in physical form are registered and returned by the Company's Registrar and Share

Transfer Agent In about 20-25 days of the receipt of documents, provided documents are found In order.
Shares under objections are returned within two weeks. The Board has delegated the authority for
approving transfor, transmission of shares to the Whole Time Director and Company Secretary, which Is
approved on regular basis by the Shareholders' Grievances Committee ofthe Board at Its meeting.

In compliance with the ListingAgreement/SEBI Guidelines -

a) a Practicing Company Secretary carries out Secretarial Audit on "Dematerialised shares and 
shares In Physical form* every quarter and the necessary reports Issued by him a re filed with the Stock 
Cxchar^. The shares in Dematerialised fonn and Physical fonn tally with the Issued/paid-up capital 
ofthe Company.

b) Shareholding pattern and financial results are being uploaded in "Electronic Data Infonnation Filing 
and Retrieval" (EDIFAR) quarterly and the Annual Report annually.

c) a Practicing Company Secretary carries out a Due Diligence survey, pertaining to share transfors, 
transmissions etc., every six months and necessary certificates to that effect are Issued and the same 
are filed with the Stock Exchanges in compliance with clause 47(c) ofthe Listing Agreement.

DlstrlbutTonof Shareholdlitg:

The distribution of shareholding as on 31̂  March 2011 Is given below

Rarige Shareholders Shares

No. of shares Number % To Total 
Shareholders

Numbers % To Total 
Capital

1 - 500 1373 84,49 197133 4,89
501 - 1000 111 6,83 87403 2,17
1001 - 2000 58 3,57 89069 2,21
2001 - 3000 44 2,71 114467 2,84
3001 - 4000 10 0,62 35031 0,87

4001 - 5000 6 0,37 27886 0,69
5001 - 10000 8 0,49 52077 1,29

10001 and above 15 0,92 3429992 85,04
TOTAL 1625 100.00 4033058 100.00



DematerialMtlon of shares as on 3lst March, m i

Nearly 98% of total Equity Share Capital is held In Dematerialised form with NSDL & CDSL

Category No. of
shares

%

Dem at

Physical

Total

B948754

84B04

40BB058

97.91

2.09

100.00

Phyacal
2-1

OT' 1 D De- mat 
■ Physical

De-mat
98%

* Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2011

PUillc
ShaEhctfErf

C a te g o r y N o .  o f  s h a re s %  h o ld in g

P r o m o t e  rs 3 0 2 4 7 9 3 7 5 ,0 0 %

N R is 1 3 5 0 0 0 ,3 3 %

I n d ia n  I n s t i t u t i o n s 3 5 0 0 ,0 1 %

N a t io n a l i s e d  B a n k s N il N i l

D o m e s t ic  C o m p a n ie s 3 1 6 4 2 7 7 ,8 5 %

P u b l ic  S h a r e h o ld e r s 6 7 7 2 6 1 1 6 ,7 9 %

D i r e c t o r s 7 2 7 0 ,0 2 %

T o t a l 4 0 3 3 0 5 8 1 0 0 .0 0 %

• Registered Office

'Caravs', Room No. 28,15, Civil Lines, Jabalpur (M. P.) 432 001. 
Ph.: (0761)2678627

a Address for Correspondence

(a) 'Caraws', Room No. 28,
15, Civfl Unes, Jabalpur [M. P.) - 482 001.

(b) P.O. Bom No. 91,
Jabalpur (M.P.)-482001

(c) C B MansQement Services Pvt Ltd.
P-22, Bondel Road,
Kolkata 700 013.
Ptwne :{033 
Fax :(033

2280 6692-93-94 
2287 0263

Email : cbmsll@Gal2.vsnl.net.in

mailto:cbmsll@Gal2.vsnl.net.in


♦ Piant Location
MeefgunJ, Bheraghat Road, Jabalpur, M.P.

* Transfer of Undabned amounts to Investor Education and Protection FUnd

Pursuant to Sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Ac^ 1956> all unclaimed / unpaid dividend, 
deberrture Interest as well as piindpal amount of debentures as at March 31, 2011 remaining unpaid or 
unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date they became due for payment, have been transferred to 
the Investor Education & Protection Fund (lEPF) established by the Central Government,

Shareholderst/ debentureholders are hereby infonmed that the Company is statutorily required to transfer 
to the I EPF all undalmed/unpald dividend, debenture Interest and Interest on debentures as well as 
principal amourrtof deberrtures remain ing unpaid/unclaimed fora period ofseven years from the date they 
became due for payntent and once such amounts are transferred to the I EPF, no claim ofihe shareholder/ 
debeiTtureholder shal I lie against theCompanyorthelEPF.

The Investors are advised to claim the unencashed equity dividend / preference dividend / preference 
redemption money for the years 2003-04 to 2009-10 lyirtg In the unclaimed accourrts of the Company 
before the due dates {as Indicated in the Notes to the Notice) for crediting the same to the Investor 
Education and Protectfon Fund.

During the financial year 2010-11 the Company has remitted the unclaimed 3rd and final Debenture 
Redemption amountlngto Rs. 1,69,836/-to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Jabalpur Ravindra K. Raje Ashok K. Kapur
Date: 3iJ* May, 2 0 ii D irector Whote-time D irector



CERT IF IC A T E  O  N  C O R  P O R  A T  E G O V E R N A N C E

■fo,
The Members of 
NARMADA GEUniNES UMITED

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Narmada Gelatines Umlted {the 
conipany) forthe year ended 31‘ March 2011, as stipulated In clause 49 ofthe Ustlrg Agreement ofthe said company, 
with stock exchanges.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance b the responsibility of the management. Ourexamination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted bythe company for ensuring the compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance. It b neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financia I statements of 
the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordiryg to the explanations given to us and the 
representations made, we certify that the oompany has compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated In Clause 49 of the above-mentioned Ustlng Agreement.

As required by the Guidance Note on Cert'rffcate of Corpofate Govefnance issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, we state that as per the records maintained by the oompany, there were no investor's 
grfevances remaining unattended / pendlngformorethan30daysason31.03.2011.

We further state that such compliance Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the 
efficlencyor effectiveness with whkh the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For T.R. Chadha & Co.
Him Registration No.00G711N 
Chartered Accountants

Vikas Kdmar
Date: May30,2011 (PartiMf)
Place: Jabalpur M.N.75363



WPrTORS'RETOBT
T o,

The Members of Narmada Gelatines Umited

1. We have audited the attached Balanoe Sheet of Nannada Gelatines Limited asat3l£tMardi,2011andalso 
the Profrt and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement fbr the year ended on that date annexed thereto. 
These financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Company's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financia I statements based on ouraudit.

2. We conducted our audit In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In India. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to otrtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material mlsstatentent An audit Includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements. An audit also Includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significarTt estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
baslsforouropinlon.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2D03 Issued by the Central Government of India In 
terms of sub-section (4A) of the Section 227 of the Companies Ac,1956, we enclose in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified In paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order to the extent applicable to the 
oompany.

4. FurthertoourcommentslntheAnnexure refened to above, we reportthat:

4.1 We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowletfee and belief 
were necessa ryforthepurposes of ouraudit.

4.2 In our opiniort, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the oompany so far as 
appears from ourexamination of those books.

4.3 The Balanoe Sheet, ProfR and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statemerrts dealt with by this report are In 
agreement with the books of accou nt.

4A In our opinion, the Balance Shee^ Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow statement dealt with by this 
report have been prepared In compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards referred to in sub­
section (3C)of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

4.5 On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2011 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, we reportthat none ofthe directors is disqualified ason 31st March 
2011 from being a ppolnted asadlrectorlntermsofClause(g)of sub-section (l)ofSectlon 274 ofthe 
CompaniesAct 1956;

4.6 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said 
accounts read together with the Notes on Accou nts as per Schedule 17, glwethe Infbrnwtlon required by 
theCompanies Act, 1956, In the manner so required and give a tmeand felrvfewin confomiity with the 
accounting pri nciples generally accepted in India;



(I) inthecaseoftbeBalatweShee^ofthe state ofaffairsoftheConipanvasat3istMarch,20ii; 
(il) inthecaseofthePriofltand Loss AicoounL ofthe Profit fbrthevearendedontfiatdate;and 
[111) inthecaseoftfie Cash FlowStatement,oftheCash Flows fbr the year endedonthatdate.

ForT.R.Oiadha&Co. 
Chartered Accountants

Vikas Kumar
Date : May30,2011 (Partner)
Place; Jabalpur M.N.75363

nrm Realstratioit NO.0067UN



Annexure to the Auditors' Report for the year ended 31st IHarch, 2011 
(Reilerred to in Parpgreph 3 of our Report of even date)

I. FhedAssets

a) TheCompanyhasmalntalnedproperrecordstoshowfullpartlcularslnclud1r>gquarYtltatlvedetallsand 
situatfon of Its fixed assets.

b) Asperthelnformatlonandexplanatlofiglventous.thecompanyhasphYslcallvvertfledlts assets during 
the previous year, which In our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size ofthe company and the 
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verifications.

c) The assets discarded / soldduringtheyeararenot substantial and a re not affecting the operations of 
theCOmpanyasagolngconcern.

II. Inventories

a) The inventory (except inventory in transit, the subsequent confirmation of which has been obtained) 
has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verlficatfon Is reasonable.

b) The procedures of physical verification of Inventortes followed by the Company Is reasonable and 
adequate In relation tothe size ofthe Company and the nature of Its business.

c) The Company Is nrralntalnlng proper records of Inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verfficatlon 
between the physical stocks and records were not material in relation to the operation ofthe company 
andthesamehavebeenproperlydealtwtthlnthe boob of account.

III. Loans givan/tehan

As informed to us, the company has neither granted nor taken any Loans, secured or unsecured to/from 
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 301 ofthe Companies 
Act, 1956. Accordingly, clauses 3 (b) to 3 (g) of Para 4 of the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

IV. Intamal Control

In our opinion, there Is an adequate Intemal control system commensurate with the size of the Company 
and nature of Its business forthe purchase of inventory, fixed assets and forthe saleof goods and services. 
During the course of our audit, we have neither observed nor have been informed of any continuity 
failure to connect major weakness In Internal control system.

V. TVansactlons under Section 301

Accordingtothe information and explanation given to us, there are no contracts or arrangements entered



d u ring the year wtiidi needs to be entered In the register required to be maintained undersection 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

VI. Public Deposit

Thecompany has not accepted any fixed deposits under Section 58Aof theCompanies Act, 1956.

VII. Intenial Audit System

In our opinion, tbe Company's Internal audit system Isgenerally commensurate with tbe size and nature of 
Its business.

VIII. Cost Records

AseKplalnedtous,themalntenanoeof cost records has not been prescribed by tbe Central Government 
under clause (d) of sub section (1) of Section 209ofthe Companies Act 1956, fbr any of its products.

DC Statutory Dues

a) Tbe Company has generally been regular In deposhing Its undisputed statutory dues Including 
Provident Fund, Investors Education and Protection Fund, \felue Added Taig Wealth Taiig Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, E)«cise Duty, Cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate 
authorities duringthe year. We have been Irrfbrmed that the employees ofthe Company Is not covered 
under Employees' State Insurance Scheme. Aocordir^ to the information and explainations givento 
us, no undisputed amounts payable In respert of Provident Fund, Investors Education and Protection 
Fund, Income Tbx, Sales Tbx, Wealth Taot, Service Ibx, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other 
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31.03.2011 fbr a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

b) The details of dues of Income Tax / excise duty not deposited on account of dispute alor^ lth the 
amourrts involved and tha forum where dispute Is pending Is given as under;

Nature Am ount 
Rs.in Lacs

Forum at which pending

I n c o m e  Tax 7 1 . 2 7 ITAT
Excise  Dutv o s a e i Fligh C o u r t

1 2 S . S 5 CE5TAT

5 2 4 . 2 4 C o m m i s s i o n e r  / 
C o m m i s s i o n e r  ( A p p e a l s )

7 . 3 2 Asst .  C o m m i s s i o n e r



X. The Cotnpeny has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year and In the Immediately 
precedingflnandal year, nor does It have any accumulated losses.

XI. In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repaymentof dues to Financial Institutions or Banks.

XII. The Com pany has not gra nted anyloansandadvancesonthebasisofanysecurftyby way of pledge of 
shares, debentures and other securities.

XIII. As explained, the oompany Is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clauses 13 (a) to (d) of Para 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order are not applicable 
to the company.

XIV. As explained and verified, the Company Is not engaged in dealing or trading In shares, securities, 
debentures and other Investments.

XV. As eixplalned and verified, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from 
Banks or Financial Institutions.

XVI. The Company has not obtained any term loan during tha year. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 16 
ofPara4ofthe Com panies (Auditor's Report) Order arenotapplkabletothe company.

XVII. According to the Irrformation and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the Balance 
Sheet c f the Company, we reportthat no funds raised on shortterm basis have been used for longterm 
Investment.

XVIII. Accord Ingtothelnformatlonand explanations glVen to us and verified byus,theCompanyhasnotmade 
any preffsrentlal allotment of shares during the year to parties and companies covered In the Register 
maintained under section 301 of Companies Act, 1956.

XIX. Accord Ing to the Irrfonnation and explanations giventoustha Com panyhasnot issued anyDebentures 
durir^ the year.

XX. Accord Ing to the Information and explanations given toustheCbmpanyhasnotraisedanymoneyfrom 

the public duringthe year through public Issue.

XXI. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been 
noticed or reported duringthe year

F o r m  Chadha &  Co. 
Chartered Acoiuntarits 

Vikas Kumar
Date ; May 30,2011 (Partner)
Place; Jabalpur M .N .75363



NAR MA DA GE L? \T IN ES  U M I T E D

BALANCE SH EET AS AT 3 1  st MAR CH 2 0 1 1

Amount (Rs000)

Sdiedule Asat
31st March 2041

As at
34.st March 2018

SOURCES OF FUrOS

SHftREHOlDERS'RJMJS
Share Capital 
Reserves & Surplus

1
2

^ 3 3 8
5 2 ^7 5

40338
564713 450097 490435

LOANFUrOS
Seoured Loans 3 6564 3942

DBFRRB) TAX UABllTYffJel) 33132 33499

TOTAL G04489 527876

APPUCATION OF RJtTOS

HXED ASSETS
Gross Block 
Less: Depredation 
Net Block 

Captal Work in Progress

4 500049
294629

484116
275715

205420
729

208401
1657

WVESTMBTTS 5 65003 55003

CURRENT ASSETS LOANS & ADVANCES

Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash and Bank Balances
Other Current .Assets - Interest Accrued on
Loans and Advances

Less: Cuirent Uabiiities and Provisions
Curent Liabilties 
Frov'isions

LET CURRENTASSETS

6
7
8

Deposits
9

18
11

173980
132842

84651
2620

36589
430682

65625
31800
97425

U8113
123336
74597

1853
32232

350131

60961
26365
87316

333257 262815

TDTAL G044O9 527876

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 17

The schedules referred t o  abcve form an integral part o f t he  Balance Sheet.  This i s t he  Balance Sheet  referredto in our 
Report of  even date.

TR.CHftDHft&Ca
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board

Vikas Ml mar
Partner

M.Verma
Company Secretary

R.K.R4e
Director

A. Kapur
Director

Jcbalpcr 30th 2011



PfiOFrr & LOSS a c c o u n t  fo r  t h e  y e a r  e n d e d  3l5t MARCH. 2D11

A m o u n t fRs. 0001

Schedule Year Ended 
31st Mart h 2011

Yaar Ended 
31st Marth 2010

IIMCOM E
Sales
Less: Exdse Duty

964756
54976

S75294
27S22

Net Sales 
Other Income 12

9097SO 
12022

S27462
14007

Total 922B12 951469

EXPENDITURE
Raw M ateria Is Cons urn ed
M anufactu ri ng, Adm in istrative  & O the r Overheads 
Interest
(Increa se) /  Decrease i n Stocks 
Depreciation
Less; Transfer from  Revaluation Reserve

13
14
15
16

IS B IB
1624

4S7495 
294S27 

121 
(176 92)

172 S5
17701

1952

291254
2S7540

995
22492

15749
Total 7B2046 729030

P ro fit be fore  taxa tion  
Provision fo r Taxation

C urrent Year Tax 
Deferred Tax

46409
(266)

140766

46042
40740

(S9)

122429

40651
PRO F IT ATTE R TAXATIO N
Balance b ro u g h tfo rw a rd  from  p reviousyear 
P ro fit a va lia b le  fo r a p p ro p rla tlo n

94723
229S46 
324 569

91799
170245
252133

A p p ro p r ia t io n s :
T ra ns fe rto  General Reserve 
Proposed D ividend on Equity Shares 
Tax on proposed d iv idend 
Balance carried to  Balance Sheet

9472
16122

2679
2962S6

S I 79 
12099 

2009 
229S46

324 569 252133

Basic and D ilu ted Earnings per Share (Rs.)
1 Refer NoLe No. 11 of NoLei Lo /̂ ozounLzl

22.49 2 0 .2S

NOTES ON ACCOUNT 17

The schedules referred to  above form  a n Integra 1 part of th e  P ro fit & Loss Acco unt. This is the P ro fit & Loss Account 
referred to  in our Report of a /en  date.

T.R. CHADHA &  COL

C harteredAccountants

For and on behalf o f th e  Board

Vlltas Kumar
Partner

M .Verm a
Company Secretary

R.K.Raje
D irector

A.Kap ur
D irector

Jabalpur 20th May, 2011



Year Ended 
31st M arch J f t l l

Year Ended 
31st M arch im

A. Cash F lo w fro r r  O perating A r t  I v lt  Ies :

M el p ro fit before tax 
A d justm ents  f o r ;
D epredation
Interest Income
P ro fit on sal e o f In vestm ents
Interest Expenses
Loss/(Profit) on Im pair me nVsale o f fixed assets 
Sundrv Debit Balances W ritte n  o ff 
Provision /  Balances w ritte n  back 
O pera tlrjg  p ro f it  b e fo re  w o rk lr jg  cap ita l changes

172S5
IA4S.2)

(1174)
131 

0

132 
(3B3)

143766

11529

15749
(7700)

0

995
432

S6
(3S7)

122439

9136
152295 131575

A d ju s trre n ts  f o r :

(lncrease)/Decrease InTrade and o ther receivables (12323) (32943)
(lncrease)/Decrease in Inventories (55S67) 25770
lncrease/(Decrease) InTrade and O ther Payables 4417 (63772) (4S43) (12016)
Cash gene rated f ro r r  opera tions 88523 119559
Dire [1 Taxes pa id (45351) (39459)
N et Cash f ro r r  opera tlrjg  ac tiv ities  (A) 43172 80100

B. Cash F lo w fro r r  Investlrjg  A c tiv itie s  :

Sale o f Fixed Assets 0 300
Purchase o f Fixed Assets &  Capital WI P (17157) (145SS)
P ro fit on sal e o f In vestm ents 1174 0
Inves tm en tin  M utua l Funds (10003) (55000)
Interest received 44S2 (21501) 7709 (61579)
N et Cash used In 1 nvestlrjg A ctiv ities  ( B) (21501) (61579)

oont..!



C. Cash Flo VI from  Fin an cin^ Activities:

Dwidend including tsK thereon paid 
Net IncreastylDecrease) in Bank borrowings 
Interest Paid

Net Cash used in F han ting  Activities (C)

Net lncrease/(Declease) h  Cash and Cash Equivalents
(A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (O p e n B a la n c e )

Cash and Cash Equivalents (ClosingBalance)

(14108)
2622
(131)

(11617)
(1UG17)

10054

74597

84651

(11797)
(20787)

(995)
(33579)
(33579)

(15058)

89655

74597

Notes:

(a)Theabov'eCashFlowSt3CenfienthasbeenpreparedinaccordancevviththeAcoounitingStandardonCashFlowStatenfienitO^S-3), issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents represent:

Cash and Cheques in Fland 
Remittance in Transit 
Balance w ith  Scheduled Banks

As at 
31.83.2811

(Rs. 000)

609
2971

81071

A sa t
31.83.2818

(Rs. 000) 

663 
91 

73843
(Includes Rs.41680 (Pre/i ous year Rs22663) which are not a /a ilab le fo r use by the Company)

(c) Previousyear's figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary.

This is th e  Cash Flow Statement re fe rred to  in our Report o f even date

T.R.CHADHA&Ca F o ra n d o n b e h ^ o fth e B o a rd
Chartered Accountants

Vikas Kumar
Partner

Jabalpur

M. Verma
Company Secretary

30th May, 2011

R.K.RaJe
Director

A.Kapur
Director



N A R M A D A  GELATINES U M I T E D

SCHEDULES TD ACCOU NTS
A m oun t (R s.'000)

A s e t A s e t
31st M a-ch 2011 31st Merch 2010

SCH ED U L E  - 1 :  S H A R E  C A P IT A L
Authorised
1,00,00,000 E jqu itvS haresofR s.lO /-each 100000 100000
1,00,00,000 9 % CumulativE Redeemable Preference 100000 100000
Shares of Rs.10/- each.

200000 200000
Issued, Subscribed end Peld up
40,99,05S Equity Shares of R s lO /-ea ch , fu lly  paid 40331 40331

Forfeited Sha res 7 7

T f i ta l 40338 40338

Notes :
(1) GftheaboveEquityShares:

(a) 5,96,020 Equity Shares(*) were allotted as fu lly paid up by o f bonus shares by capitalisation of Capital Redemption Reserve and 
GeneralReserveinl994-9G.

(b) 46,650E quityShares(*)w ereallo ttedasfu llypaidupforconsiderationotherthancash, pursuanttoacontract.
*  some o f these shares (numbers not ascertainable since shares are in demat form) stand cancelled as perthe Scheme of arrangement 
approvedbyCalcuttaH ighCourton6thMay, 2003.

(2) 30,24,793 ( Previousyear 30,24,793) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each are held by Dandarxati IrwestmentsTrading Co. Pvt. Ltd., the holding 
company

S C H E D U L E - 2  : R E S E R V E S  A N D  S U R P L U S

Capitzil Reserve 

Securities Premium Acc;ourt

Revzrluation Reserve
As p e r last Balanc e 5h ee t 

Less: D educ tion  on accoun t o f d e p re c ia tio n  /
im p a irm e n t/  sale o f ce rta in  assets [N o te  
be lo w )

751

47B41

751

47B41

17393

1534 1575B

19522

2229 17393

Capital Redemption Reserve

As p e r last Balanc e Sh ee t 14B52 14B52

Senerai Reserve

A d d :

Pmfit & Loss Account

As p e r last Balanc e 5h ee t 

T ransfe rred  f r o m  P ro fit &  Loss Acc ou n t

1394D 4

9472 14BB75 

2 9 5 2 B5

13 1 22 4

B179 1394D 4

229B 45

N d Ce : D E d u r t i o n s  f r D m  R E V B l u B t i o n  RESEr-VE C D m p r i s E S  o f  Rs.l,6 3 4  (P rE V. Y E B r R s .  1 , 9 6 2 )  t h o u s B  n d s  o n  B CC D unt o f  d E p r E r i s t i D n  s n d  N i l

( P rE V .  Y E B r  Rs . 2 7 7 )  t f i D u s s n d s  o n  B C C D u n t  o f  I m p B i r m E  n t  / s b Ie  o f  CErtB in BSSEts ( P l s n t  Si  M B c h i n E r i E s )  d u r i n g  t h E  yEBr .



SCHEDULES TD ACCOUNTS
A m o u  n t (Rs.'DDD)

A sat As at
31st March ZOll 31st March ZOlO

SCHEDULE - 3 : SECURED LOANS 

Cash Credit from Banks D 3942
Secured by h y p o th e c a tio n  charge  o v e r  en tire  c u rre n t assets, stock o f 
ra w  m a te r ia l, f in is h e d  g o o d s , w o rk  in p rogress and rece ivab le  o f th e  
com pany , b o th  p re se n t and fu tu re  and a lso m o rtg a g e  /  h y p o th e c a tio n  
charge  on Land and B u ild in g  and o th e r  im m o v a b le  and m ova b le  
Fixed Assets o f th e  C om pany.

Bank Overdraft
Secured against Fixed D epos its

55 54

Tntal 6564 394Z

SCH ED ULE - 4 : FIXED AS SET S
Amount (Rs .'ODD)

A iie ti 6rou Blockat cost / Revalued value Depreciation Net Block

Asat Additions Disposals/ A iat Aiat Dlipoiali/ For A iat A iat A iat

l i t  Apr'LO Impairment i l i t  Mar'Ll l i t  Apr'18 Impairment the Year 31it Mar'Ll 31it Mar'Ll 31it Mar'L8

Freehold Land LL9ZE 0 0 LL92E 0 0 0 LL92E LL92E

Build! rgs 5L973 7432 0 54405 34L5E LLE9 35347 L905E L7EL5

Plant and Machinery 4LCil5£ 13975 2132 422101 233LB3 LB934 250097 172004 L7SJ95

Furniture and Fittirgs L47B LB 0 L492 13 BE 47 L4L3 79 LLO

Computer & Office Equipments 5757 4SB 20 B223 444E E2E 50E9 LL54 1311

Electrical Installations L94S LITE 0 3124 1M5 121 L9EB LL5£ 103

Vehicles 77B 0 0 77B 737 0 737 39 39

Total 4M116 18085 2152 54W49 275715 18919 294429 285428 288401

Previous Year 4B7170 2515B £21£i 454LLB 2E52EE 7254 17JA 275715 20E40L

N o t e ; F reeh ol d Land, Bu ild i ngs, P lan t &  M a c h in e ry  an d E lect ri cal I n s ta lla t io n s  w e re  reva l ue d  on 3 1 ,3 ,1 9 9 0  an d  3 1 ,3 ,1 9 9 3  

by an a p p ro v e d  v a lu e r  at th  e th e n  n e t re p la c e m e n t cost. T h e  apprec i a tion  in va lu e o f  th  ese assets o v e r th e ir  b o o k  

v a lu e  has been c re d ite d  t o  R eva lu a tio n  R eserve.



SCHEDULES TD ACCOUNTS
Amount (R s.'000)

A s at A s at
SIstM arch  2011 SIstM arch  2010

SCH ED U L E  - 5 :  IN V E S T  M E N T S

LongTerm :

In GovErnment Securities - NSC

Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted)* 65000 55000

Total 65003 55003

’ Investment in Mutual Fund:

Nameof Mutual Fund No. of un Its cost No. of units Cost
Relia nee RegularSaving Fund - Debt- GreMth Option

- - 676661 11000
TempletonlndialncomeOpportunitieiFund-G royurt h 3317S44 34000 23S79S6 24000
ICIO Pmdential long Term Plan-Giowth option

- - 1017612 20000
BSL Fixed le rm Plan Series CP -Groviith 1100000 11000 - -

Kotak FW P Series 43 -G lowth 2000000 20000 - -

Total 65000 55000

Net Asset'Value as on 31st Marchf 67567 5 550 5

SCHEDULE-6 : INVENTORIES

Stones Si Spare Parts 24979 15284
RafvV Materials 70612 42132
Stock in Prticess 58153 45194
Finished Goods [including in transit) 20236 15503
Total 173980 UB113



SCHEDULES TO ACCOU MTS

A m o u  n t (Rs.'DDD)

As a t As a t

31st M a rc h  Z O l l 31st M a rc h  ZOlO

SCHEDULE - 7 : SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured)

Debts D u ts ta n d ir^ fo r  a period exceed r ^  six m on ths
Considered good 1049 0
Considered doubtfu l 609 1528

O ther Debts (Considered Good) 131793 123336
133451 124864

Less: Provision fo r  doubtfu l debts 609 1528

Total 132S42 123336

SCHEDULE - 8 : CASH & BANK BALANCES

Cash and Che que s in Hand 609 663
Remittances I nTransit 2971 91
Balancesw ith Scheduled Banksin

C urren tA ccount 5254 9504
Cash Credit Account 5137 4176
M argin De posit 2142 2153
Fixed Deposit* 64967 53407
Unpaid Divide nd Account 1253 2058

Unpaid De be nture Redemption Account 0 170
9% Preference Shares Redemption Account 2318 2375

Total 84651 74597

*  includes a Fixed Deposits o f Rs359.67 lacs (Prev. Year Rs.159.07 lacs) on 
w h ich  charge has been created fo r availing overdra ft facility  from  a 
bank.

SCHEDULE-9  : LOANS AND ADVANCES (Unsecured)

Considered Good

Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind 
or fo r value to  be rece ved

Deposits w ith  Governm ent and other bodi es

30277

6312

26387

5845



SCHEDULES TD ACCOUNTS
Am ount (Rs.'OOO)

As at A sa t
31st M a c h  2011 31st M arch 2010

S C H E D U L E  - 1 0  : C U R R E N T  L IA B IL rT IE S

Duestio M icro and Snnall Enterprise (Refer N ote no.7 o f Notes to  Accounts) 6175 5688
Dues to creditors o ther than  Micro and Snn all Enterprise 27651 25 582
Other Liabilities 28228 25 078
Uncialnned D ividend* 1253 2058
Uncialnned Debenture Redennption Account* - 170

Unclaimed 9% Preference Share Redemption Account* 2318 2375

Total 65625 60951

*These am ounts w ill be transferred to  th e  Investor Education and Protection 
Fund upon the same becom ing due ^ e r  seven years in term s of section 205 A 
and 205C of th e  Companies A c f 1956.

S C H E D U L E  - 1 1  : P R O V IS IO N S

Provision fo r Income tact (ne t o f Advance Tatt Rs.l69716 Previous year 124375) 4308 3235

Provision fo r G ratuity 4478 4735
Provision fo r Lea/e Encashment 2905 2989
Provision fo r Cenvat Credit Reversal 1298 1298
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 16132 12099
Tatt on Dividend 2679 2009

Total 31000 26 365

Yearended 

l i s t  March 2011

Year ended 

l i s t  M arch 2010

S C H E D U L E  - 1 2  : O T H E R  IN C O M E

MiscellanEDUs IncomE 7352 529S

ForEign ExchangE Gain 14 0
Prrsfit on salE tsf InvEstmEnts 1174 0

IntErEst IncomE (Gross)

From  Banks 4142 73S5
From GthErs 340 44 S2 324 7709

[Tax DEtiuctEt) atsourcE Rs.BSl [PrEvious VEar Rs.l039) thousanris]

Total 13012 14007

S C H E D U L E  - 1 3  : R A W M A T E R IA L S  C O N S U M E D

Gpaning Stock 42132 2S9 51

Atit) ; PurchasES 515975 404425
5 5S107 4333S5

Less ; Closing Stock 70512 42132

Total 4S7495 191254



S C H F D U L F S T G  A C C G U N TS
A m o u n t  (Rs.'OOO)

Year ended Ytar ended
3l5t ivlarch 2011 31st IVIarch 2010

SCHEDUL£ - 14 : MANUFACTURING, ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER OVERHEADS
S ta ff  Costs

Salaries, W b g e s  a n d B o n u s  6 8 5 9 5
C o n tr ib u tio n  to  P ro v id e n t &  G th e r  Fund s 9 0 9 4

649078871
W o r k m e n  &  S ta ff W e lfa r e 2875 80564 2786 76564

C o n s u m p ti on o f  s to re s  a n d  s p are  parts 12071 10957
F x d s e D u ty  on Stock 454 367
R a te s &  Taxes 346 376
P o w e r  & Fue l 148654 135668
F ff lu e n t F x p e n s e s 2533 1847
In s u ra n c e 852 1024
R epa irs

B u ild ing 150 1085
M a c h in e ry 16238 16388 22137 23222

A u d it  fe e s  &  Fxpenses
A u d it  Fees 418 418
Tax A u d it  Fees 77 77
G th e r  m a tte r s 31 30
R e im b u rs e m e n t o f  o u t o f p o c k e t exp en ses 91 617 54 579

F re ig h t a n d  D e liv e ry  C harg es 8253 9579
S e llin g A g e n ts ' C o m m is s io n 3223 4540
T r a /e ll in g 1445 1324
D ire c to rs ' Fees 89 88
R e b a te  &  D isco unt 916 2378
A d v e r t is e m e n t 588 511
R esearch  & D e v e io p m e n t Fxpenses 879 1279
S u n d ry  B a la n c e s  w r i t te n  o ff 132 86
Im p a ir m e n t  Loss 0 402
In te re s t  p a i t V p ^  a b le  to  S M F s 1 6
M is c e lla n e o u s  Fxpenses 16822 16744
Total 294027 207541

SCHEDULE -15 : FINANCE CHARGES
Interest to Bank 131 995

Total 131 995

SCHEUL£ -15 : (INCREASE) /  DECREASE IN STOCKS
C losing  Stocks

Fini shed G oo ds 20236 15503
Stock in P rocess 58153 78389 45194 60697

G p e n in g S to c k s
Fini shed G oo ds 15503 48614
Stock in P rocess 45194 60697 45575 94189

Total (17G92) 33492



SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS 
SCHEDULE 17 - NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
SiGNinCAHTACCOUNTWG POLICIESAND NOTES TOACCOUNTSFORTTE YEAR ENDED 31«t MARCH 2011 

A Significant Accounting Polldte 
1 Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and in accor-dance with the 
generally accepted accounting prtndples In India, piwislons of tbe Companies Act, 1956 (tbe Act) and 
GompIV in material aspects witb tbe accounting standards notified under Section 211 (3C) of the Act, 
read with Compan ies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

z Use of Estimates
The preparation of finandal statements In confbrmlty with generally accepted acoourrting principles 
requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affeotthe reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disdosura of contingent liabllltfes at tbe date of ttie flnandal statements and the results of 
operations during tbe reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon Management's best 
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Differences 
between the actual results and estf mates are recognized In the period in which the results are known or 
the events materialize.

3 FbcedAssets
Freehold land. Buildings, Plant and Machinery and Electrical Installations were revalued as at 31.3.93 
by an approved valuer at the tben net replacement cost and were stated acoordingly.
The gross Mode of Fixed Assets is stated at cost of acquisition or constnjctlon (except revalue assets), 
Includir  ̂any cost attributable to bringing the assets to their working condition for their Intended 
use. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time till such assets are ready for the Intended use 
are capitalized.

4 Depredation
(I) Depreciation Is provided at tbe rates and In tbe manner prescribed under Schedule XIV of the 

CompaniesAct, 1956.(if) Depreciation on certain Buildings acquired prior to 1st July 1986 is charged under Written 
Down Value method and on others under Straight Une rrwthod.(II) Being a continuous plant. Depreciation on Plant and Machinery has been charged @ 5.28% 
under Straight Line method on single shift basis excepting certain items acquired before 1st 
July, 1986, on wblcb depreciation Is charged underwritten Down Value method. Depreciation on 
Diesel Generator sets Is charged under Straight Line Method.

(hr) Depreciation on Electrical Installations and Furniture & Fixtures is charged under Written Down 
Value method.(v) Depreciation on Motor Vehicles b dia rged under Stia Ight Une method.

(vl) In respect of revalued assets the incremental depredatfon on account of revaluation Is 
recouped from Revaluation Reserve.



SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS 
SCHEDULE 17 - NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
5  I n v e s t m e n t s

Long term Investments are stated at cost. Provision Is made fbr dlmlnutfon, other than temporary. In the 
va lue of Investments, whenever a pplicable.
Current Investments are ca rrfed at lower ofcost andfelr/marketvalue.

6  I n v e n t o r i e s

Inventories are stated at cost (net of CENVAT credit) or net realisable value, whichever Is lower. Cost Is 
determined on weighted average basis and comprises of expenditure incurred In the normal course of 
business in bringing inventories to their preseirt location Induding appropriate overheads apportioned on 
a reasonable and oonsistent basis. Obsolete, slow moving and defective stocks are Identified atthe time of 
physical verification of stocks and where necessary, provision Is made for such stocks.

7  R e s e a r c h  a n d  D e v e l o p m e n t  E x p e n s e s

All revenue expenditure on research and development Is written off in the year It Is incurred. Capital 
expenditure on research and development b Included In fixed assets and depredated as per policy.

8 Revenue Recognition
(I) Sale of goods b reor^nised when the significant risk and rewards of ownership b transferred to the 

customers, net of returns. Sales represents Invoiced value of goods supplied Includlrig excise duty but 
excluding sales tax

(II) Revenue recognition from sale of 'Duw Entitlement Passbook Licence' Is made on sale ofthe licence 
after receipt ofthesamefromtheofflceofthe Director Genera I of Foreign Ttede.

9 Income from Investments
Income from Investments (otherthan investments in shares of companies), b accounted on an accrual 
basis. Income from Investment In shares of companies b recognised as and when the right to receive 
such Income isestablbhed.

I D  F o r a l g r i C u r r e n c y ' n a n s a c t l o n s

(i) Foreign cunency transactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
the transactions. Gains and losses. If any, at the year end In respect of monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities not covered by the forward contracts are recognized in the Profit and Loss 
Account.

(ii) Non-monetary items denominated In foreign currency are stated at the rate prevailing on the date 
ofthe transaction.



SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS 
SCHEDULE 17 - NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
11 Retirament benefits

Contributionis to defined contribution schemes such as Pension, Provident Fund, etc. are charged to the 
Profit and Loss accourrt as and when Incurred.
The Companv also provides for retirenwm/ post-retirement benefits In the form of gratuity and leave 
encashment. Such defined benefits are charged to the Profit and Loss account based on valuations nrrade 
by independent actuaries, as at the balance sheet date.

1 2  A i C c o u r r t i n g f b r l b H e s

Provision fbr current tax Is made after taking Into consideration benefits admissible underthe provisions 
of the Income TaxAct, 1961. Deferred tax resulting ftom 'timing differences' between book and taxable 
profit is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on 
the balanoe sheet date. The deferred tax asset Is tax recognized and carried fonvard only to the extent that 
there is a reasonablecertainty that the assets will be realized in future. However, in respectof unabsorbed 
depreciation or carry forward losses, tbe deferred tax asset Is recognized and carried forward only to the 
extent thattherelsavirtualoertalntythatthe assets wfllbereallzedlnluture.

13. Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses
VoluntaryRetlrementSchemeExpensesarefullychargedoffintheyearof payment.

1 4 .  I m p a i n r w n t  o f  A s s e t s

Impairment losses (ifany) on fixed assets (Including revalued assets)are recognized In accordance with the 
Accounting Standard 28 "Impairment of Assets" issued in this regard by the Institute of Chartered 
Aooountants of India. If the carrylr>g amount of fixed assets exceeds the recoverable amount on the 
reporting date, the carrying amount Is reduced to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
measured as the higher of the net sellir  ̂price and the value In use determined by the present value of 
estimated future cash flows.

15 ProvTslon and Contingent Liabilities:
Provisionis are recognized when theCompany has a present obligation, as a result of past events, for which 
It Is probable that an outflow of economic benefits wfll be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimatecanbemadefortheamountDfthe obligation.
Thesamelsdlsclosedas oontingeiTt llabllltylfnorellableestimateGanbemadeaftheamourTtofobI Igation 
or possibi lity of future cash fiow is remote.



SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS 
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B Notes to Accounts Amount (Rs. '000)

Asat Asat
31.03.2D11 31.03.2D1D

1. Estlmatedamountofcontractremalnlngtobe 
exiecuted on capital account not provided for

2. Contlngentllabllltynot provfded for In respect o f:
29521 558

(a) Counter Guarantees to Bank 650 6S0
(b) Letter of Credit
(c) Claims not acknowledged as debts:

Nil 25
(I) BffiiseDuty 103881 99911
(11) IncomeTax 7127 7127

3. Stores consumed Included under Repairs to Machinery R&100.9S lacs (2009^10: Rs.124.2S lacs]. 
Miscellaneous Expenses Rs.7.50 lacs (2009-10: Rs. 11.13 lacs), Workmen and Staff Welfare Rs.3.37 lacs 
(2009-10; Rs.3.73 lacs) and Repairsto Buildings Rs. Nil (2009-10; Rs. 0.004lacs).

4. In the opinion of ttie Board of Directors, the current assets, loans and advances have a value on realisation 
in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated and provisions are 
made tor all the expected liabilities.

5. Certain Debtors' and Creditors' balances are sub|ect to confirmation. Adjustments in this respect If any 
will be carried out as and when ascertained, which In view ofthe management would not be material.

& Excise Duty ded ucted ftom Gross sales represents the Excise DutypaldonGoods removed fromthe Factory 
andisnetofprovisionsofExcisedutyonclosing stock at factory.

7. DuestoMlmfi Small Enterprises
The amount payable to Micro & Small Enterprises has been disclosed In the balance sheet as required 
underthe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and has been determined tothe 
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The 
oompany has provided interest of Rs. 0.01 lacs (2009-10: Rs.0.06 lacs) on the delay In payment tothe Micro 
& Small Enterprises, outstanding for more than 45 days.

8 .  E m p l o y e e  B e n e f i t s

As per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures of Employee Benefits as defined In the 
Accounting Standard are given below:
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D efined  C o n tr ib u t io n  P lans:

PROVIDENT FUND
T he  p r o v id e n t  f u n d  is o p e ra te d  by t h e  R eg iona l P ro v id e n t  F und  C o m m is s io n e r  U n d e r  t h e  sche m e , t h e  

C o m p a n y  is r e q u i re d  t o  c o n t r i b u te  a sp e c i f ie d  p e rc e n ta g e  o f  pay ro l l  cost t o  t h e  r e t i r e m  e n t  b e n e f i t  schem  es t o  
f u n d  t h e  b e n e f i ts .  T h e s e fu n d s  are re c o g n iz e d  by t h e  Incom  e t a x  a u th o r i t ie s .  T he  C o m p a n y  has re c o g n iz e d  t h e  

f o l l o w in g a m  o u n ts  i n t h e  P ro f i t  a n d  Loss A c c o u n t f o r t h e y e a r ;

(Rs. in 'DDD)

Year e n d ed  
3 1 .3 .20 11

Year e n d ed  
3 1 .3 .2 0 1 0

C o n t r ib u t io n  t o  P ro v id e n t  Fund 4 5 3 7 4 1 3 6

D efined  B e n e fit  P la n s :

a. G ra tu i ty
b. Leave E n c a s h m e n t

G r a tu i t y  is p a yab le  t o  e m p lo y e e s  as pe r  P a y m e n t  o f  G ra tu i t y  Act.  Leave e n c a s h m e n t  is p a yab le  t o  e l ig ib le  

e m p lo y e e s  w h o  ha ve  e a rn e d  leaves, d u r i n g t h e  em p lo y m e n t  a n d / o r  on  s e p a ra t io n  as p e r t h e  c o m p a n y 's  policy. 
T he  c o m p a n y  has f u n d e d  t h e  G ra tu i ty  l ia b i l i t y  w i t h  G ro u p  G ra tu i ty  S che m e  o f  Life In su ra nce  C o rp o ra t io n  o f  

in d ia  L td .T h e  Leave e n c a s h m e n t  l ia b i l i t y  is n o t  f u n d e d  w i th  any a p p ro v e d  a u th o r i ty .

V a lu a t io n s  in re s p e c t  o f  G ra tu i ty  a n d  Leave E n c a s h m e n t  h a v e b e e n  c a r r ie d  o u t  by  in d e p e n d e n t  ac tuary , as a t t h e  
B a lan ce  S heet d a te ,  b a sed  on  t h e  fo l io  w in g  a s s u m p t io n s ;

GRATUITY
P a r t ic u  la rs Year E n d e d  

3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 1
Y ea r E n d e d  

3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 0

D is c o u n t  R a te  p e r  a n n u m  ( C o m p o u n d ) S. 0 0 % S. 00%

R a te  o f  in c re a s e  in S a la r ie s 5 .0 0 % 5 .0 0 %

E x p e c te d  R a te  o f  R e tu r n  on  P la n  A s s e ts 9 .2 5 % 9 .2 5 %

E x p e c te d  A v e r a g e  r e m a in i n g  w o r k i n g  l iv e s  o f  e m p lo y e e s  in 
n o .  o f  y e a rs

O f f i c e r s - 1 2 . S 1  
S ta f f  - 9 .1 1

O f f ic e r s  -15  
S ta f f  - 9

S u m m a r y  o f K e y  I n f o r m a t i o n  - G r a t u i t y  

i. C h a n g e s  in  D e f i n e d  B e n e f i t  O b i i g a t i o n :
(R s .O O O )

P a r t ic u la rs A s  at 
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 1

As a t 
3 1 .0 3 .2 0 1 0

P re s e n t  V a lu e  o f  o b l ig a t io n  0 1 ,0 4 ,2 0 1 0 3 0 4 4 3 25190
In te r e s t  Cost 2 2 8 5 1688
C u r r e n t  S e rv ic e  Cost 3 7 8 4 3216
A c t u r i a l  (G a in )  /  Loss 9 6 5 2508
B e n e f i t s  p a id ( 3755) (2 1 5 9 )
P re s e n t  V a lu e  o f  o b l ig a t io n  as at 3 1 ,3 ,2 0 1 1 3 3 7 2 3 30443
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ii. C h au ges  in  F a ir  V a lu e  o f P la n  AsBets:

(Rb .'OOO)

P a rt icu la  rs A s at 
31 .03 .2 011

As at 
31 .03 .2010

Fair  V a lu e  o f  P lan Assets  as a t  1 .4 .2 0 1 0 2 5 7 0 0 2 2 0 0 5

A d f u s t m e n t  in  o p e n in g  b a la n c e Nil 5 4 1
A c tu a l  R e tu rn  on  P lan A sse ts 2 4 24 2 1 29
E m p lo v e r  C o n t r ib u t io n 4 7 4 5 310S
A c tu a r ia l  G a in /Loss 1 2 3 0S

B e n e f i t s  Paid (3 7 5 5 ) (2 1 5 9 )
Fair  V a lu e  o f  P lan Assets  as a t  3 1 .3 .2 0 1 1 2 9 245 2 5 7 0 0

iii. R e co n c ilia t io n  of th e  P resen t v a lu e  o f d e fin ed  Presen t O b liga tion s an d  th e  Fair \fa lue o f  A ssets:

(Rb .'OOO)

Pa rticu  la rs A s at 

31 .03 .2 011

As at 

31 .03 .2010

P re s e n t  V a lue  o f  o b l ig a t io n s  as a t  3 1 .3 .2 0 1 1 33723 3 0 4 4 3

Fair  V a lu e  o f  P lan A sse ts  as a t  3 1 .3 .2 0 1 1 2 9 2 4 5 25 700
P re s e n t  V a lue  o f  u n fu  n d e d  o b l ig a t io n  as a t  3 1 .3 .2 0 1 1 4 4 7 0 4 7 3 5
U n re c o g n is e d  Past S e rv ice 0 0
U n re c o g n is e d  A c tu r ia l  (G a in )  /  Loss 0 0
U n fu n d ed  N et L ia b il it y  re cogn ised  in B a la n ce  Sh e e t 4478 4735

iv. ExperiBBB re co g n iB ed  in  P ro f it  a n d  Lo bb  A c c o u n t: (Rb .'OOO)

Pa rticu la  rs As a t 

31 .03 .2 011

A s  a t 

31 .03 .2 010

C u r re n t  S e rv ice  Cost 3 7 84 3216

In te re s t  Cost 2285 1688

N e t  A c tu r ia l  (G a in )  /  Loss 842 2421

A c tu a l  R e tu rn  on  P la n  A sse ts (2 4 2 4 ) (2 1 2 9 )

O th e rs 0 0

Tota l E xpen ses  re co g n ise d  in P ro f it  a n d  Loss A / c 4488 5196

E xpe cted  E m p lo ye r c o n tr ib u t io n  fo r  next y e a r 4488 4735

LEAV E  EIMCASHMEIMT

Pa rticu  la rs A s at 
31 .03 .2011

As at 
31 .03 .2010

D is c o u n t  R a te  p e r  a n n u m  ( C o m p o u n d ) s m % 0.0 0%
R ate  o f  in c re a s e  in Salar ies 5.00% 5 .0 0%
E x p e c te d  R a te  o f  R e tu rn  o n P la n A s s e ts NA NA
E x p e c te d  A v e ra g e  re m a in in g  w o r k in g  lives o f  e m p lo y e e s  in  no . 
o f  yea rs

O ff ice rs  - 12 .79 
S ta f f  - 0 .75

O ff ice rs  - 15  
S ta f f  - 9
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Sum ma ry o f Key  Info rm a tio n  - Leave E n ca shm en t

i. Changes in D e fined  B e n e fit  O h iig a tion : (Rs. 'OO O )

Pa rt icu la  rs A s a t  

3 1 .0 3 .2 011

As a t  

3 1 .0 3 .2 010

P re s e n t  V ^ lu e  o f  o b l ig a t io n  as a t  1 ,4 ,2 0 1 0 2 9 89 2565

In te re s t  Cost 208 195

C u r r e n t  S e rv ice  Cost 1 3 16 1 1 27

A c tu r ia l  (G a in )  /  Loss (1 3 6 9 ) (82 4)

B e n e f i t s  pa id (2 3 9 ) (7 4 )

P re s e n t  lue  o f  o b l ig a t io n  a s at 31 ,3 ,2  011 2905 2989

ii. Changes in F^ir \fa lue  o f P lan  Assets:
(Rs. 'OO O )

Pa rti cu lars As a t 

31 .0 3 .2 011

As a t 

31.03 .2010

F a i r V a lu e  o f  P lan A sse ts  as at 1 ,4 ,2 0 1 0 0 0

A c tu a l  R e tu rn  on  Plan Asse ts 0 0

Em p lo y e r  C o n t r i b u t i o n 2 3 9 74

B e n e f i t s  Pa id (2 3 9 ) (7 4 )

F a i r V a lu e  o f  Plan A sse ts  as a t  3 1 ,3 ,2 0 1 1 0 0

ii i.  R e c o n c i l ia t io n  o f  t h e  P r e s e n t  v a lu e  o f  d e f i n e d  P r e s e n t  O b l ig a t i o n s  a n d  t h e  F a i r V a l u e  o f  A ssets :

(Rs. 'OO O )

Pa rti cu lars As a t 

3 1 .0 3 .2 011

As a t 

31.03 .2010

P re s e n t  V a lu e  o f  o b l ig a t io n s  as at 3 1 ,3 ,2 0 1 1 2 90 5 2 9 89

F a i r V a lu e  o f  P lan A sse ts  a s a t 3 1 , 3 , 2 0 1 1 0 0

F u n d e d  L ia b i l i t y  R e cog n ise d  in B a la n c e  S hee t (2 9 0 5 ) (2 9 8 9 )

P re s e n t  V a lu e  o f  u n f u n d e d  o b l ig a t io n  as at 3 1 ,3 ,2 0 1 1 0 0

U n fu n d e d  N e t  L ia b i l i ty  recG gn ised  in B a la n c e  S hee t (2 9 0 5 ) (2 9 8 9 )

iv .Expenses re cogn ised  in P ro f it  and Loss A c co u n t (Rs. 'OO O )

P a rt icu la rs As a t 

31 .0 3 .2 011

As a t  

31 .03 .2 010

C u r re n t  S e rv ice  Cost 1 3 1 6 1 1 27

In te re s t  Cost 208 195

N e t  A c tu r ia  1 (G a in )  /  Loss (1 3 6 9 ) (8 2 4 )

O th e rs 0 0

Tota l E xpen ses  re co g n ise d  in P ro f it  a n d  Loss A / c 156 499

E xpe c ted  E m p lo y e r  c o n tr ib u t io n  f o r  n e x ty e a r 156 499
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9 .  S e g m e n t  I n f o r m a t i o n  a s  p e r  A c c o u n t i n g  S t a n d a r d  ( A S - 1 7 )

The company Is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of gelatine and Its by- product DCP ibr 
Industrial applications which form part of one product group and hence a single business segment. 
However, based on geogmphical factors, reportable geographic segments have been identified as exports 
sales and domestic sales. The segment wise Information pertaining to the reportable geographical 
segmentsforthe year ended31stMarch, 2011 Isas follows:

E xpo rts D om est ic To ta l

S e g m e n t  R e ven ue 2 0 5 6 7 8 9 6 5 9 2 9 1 7 1 5 9

( 4 7 8 7 9 ) ( 7 9 5 7 8 3 ) (8 4 3 6 6 2 )

S e g m e n t  Results (4 7 5 7 ) 1 4 5 6 5 4 1 4 0 8 9 7

(4 5 5 9 ) ( 1 1 3 3 7 4 ) (1 2 3 4 3 3 )

U n a l lo c a te d  E x p e n d i t u r e 131

(995)

P ro f i t  B e fo re T a x 1 4 0 7 6 6

(1 2 2 4 3 3 )

capital employed as also assets and liabflitles of the company are not capable of being stated separately 
segnaent-wlse since all the assets and liabilities are held under composite undertaking for both the 
geographic segments.

1 0 .  R e l a t e d  F f a r t y  D l s d o s u r e  a s  p e r  A c c o u n t i n g  S t a r t d a r d  ( A S - 1 8 )

(a) Errterprlses where control exists:
Jumbo World Holdings Limited 
Dandvatl InvestmentsftTTradlngCo Pvt. Ltd.

Ultimate Holding Company 
Holding Company

All the companies in the group includir  ̂those disclosed above are controlled directly/ indirectly by 
the heirs of late Mr. M. R. Chhabria through Jumbo World Holdings Limited and Its various subsidiary/ 
associate companies.

(b) Other relatedpartleswtthwhomtransactlonshavetakenplaoedurlngtheperlod;
MPIL Corporation Ltd.

(c) Othergroup companies;
Aasman Management Services Pvt. Ltd., Alfemort (Mauritius) Ltd., Camry International ¥2JE, 
Dandvatl Investments & Trading Co Pvt. Ltd., GWL Properties Ltd., Harsh It FInlease & Investments 
Private Ltd., Jerom Trading & Investment Private Ltd., Jumbo Electronics Company Ltd (LLC), Jumbo 
Electronics Corporation Pvt. Ltd., Jumbo Investments Ltd., Jumbo World Holdings (India) Ltd., Jumbo 
World Holdings Ltd., Firestorm Electronics Cor-poratlon Pvt Lid., Orson Video (P) Ltd., 
Phonegarage.com India Pvt. Ltd. Primo Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., SMN Engineers Ltd., Solvin 
International Ltd., starfire Investments Umlted, WlzerAdvertising Pvt. Ltd.
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All the Companies as disdosed above are controlled directly/indirectly by the Heirs of Late Mr. 
M.R.Chhabrfa, through Jumbo Worid Holdings Umtted and Its various subsldl-ary/assoclate 
companies.
The above, though not required In terms of Accounting Standard 18 on "Related Party Disclosures" 
issued by The Instituteof Chartered Accountants orf India, has been disclosed in view of the disclosure 
requirement of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Tblteovens) Regulations, 1997 in 
relatfon to Inter-se transferofsharesamongstgroupcompanles.

(d) Kiey Management Personnel Mr. Ashok Kapur, Whole Time Director
(Rs.'OOO)

N a tu re  o f  t ra n s a c t  io n s H o id in g  /  

U it im a te  

H o id in g  

C o m p a n y

K e y  

M a n a g e m e n t  

Pe r s o n n e i

A bb o c ia t e /  

G ro u p  

C o m p a n ie s

T o ta i

Fee &  O th e r  p a y m e n ts N ii N ii 67S 67S

(NN) (N ii) (6 62 ) (662)

D iv id e n d  pa id 9074 N ii N ii 9 074

(7 562 ) (N ii) (N ii) (7 562 )

R e m u n e ra t io n N ii 2S35 N ii 2S35

(N ii) (27 06) (N ii) (2 7 06)

O u ts ta n d in g  as a t y e a r  

end

N ii N ii 29 29

(N ii) (N ii) (32) (32)

N o t e :  Figures in b racke ts  re p re s e n t  t h e  am o u n t  p e r ta in in g  t o  p re v io u s  ye a r  

1 1 .  E a r n in g s  p e r  S h a r e  ( E P S )  as  p e r  A c c o u n t i n g  S t a n d a r d  (A S  - 2 0 )

Y e a r  e n d e d  

3 1 . 3 . 2 0 1 1

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 3 . 2 0 1 0

P ro f i t  avai ia bie f o r  equ i t y  sh are h oid e rs (A) Rs.947,23 Lacs Rs.317,33 Lacs

W e ig h ted  average n u m b e r  o f  e q u i ty  shares (B ) 40 ,33 ,053 4 0 ,33 ,05 3

N o m in a i  va iue o f  e q u i ty  share Rs 10 Rs 10

E a m ir jg s  p e r  s h a r e  Basic /  D i i u t e d l A / B ) Rs. 2 3 . 4 9 Rs. 2 0 . 2 8
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12 . T h e  m a jo r  c o m p o n e n tB  o f  d e fe r r e d  t a x  aB B e ts / l ia b il it ie B ,  b a s e d  o n  th e  ta x  e f fe c t  o f  th e  t im in g  

d if fe r e n c e s  a re  as u n d e r :

As at 
31.03.2011 

Rs.

As at 
31.03.2010 

Rs.
Deferred Tax Assets
E xpenses n o t  a l lo w e d  as p e r  I n c o m e  Tax A c t 9 , 6 5 , 1 3 7 1 0 , 1 6 , 0 1 3
V R5 t o  be  a l lo w e d  u n d e r  IT A c t  in f u t u r e  years 5 7 , 9 3 5 6 , E 4 , 4  3 E
P ro v is io n  f o r  d o u b t f u l  d e b ts Z , 0 Z , Z 1 4 5 , 1 9 , Z 9 5

1 Z , Z 5 , Z E 6 Z Z , 1 9 , 7 4 6
Deferred Tax Liability
D e p r e c ia t io n  d i f f e r e n c e 3 , 4 3 , 5  7 , 5 4 6 3 , 5 7 , 1 E , 3 0 0
Net Deferred Tax Liabiljty 3,31,32,260 3,34,9 B, 554

The net decrease in deferred tax liability of Rs.3,6€,294 has been recognized during the year as deferred 
tax Income.

13. The companv has identified the Gelatine manufacturing division as Its caslvgenerating unit (CGU) as 
required by Aocountfng Standard AS-28 "Impairment of Assets” Issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India, There are no primary indications that the recoverable amount orfCGU is less than Its 
carryfng cost. Acoordlngfy, no detailed eMerclse has been done to calculate the amount of impairment loss. 
During the year ended 31st March 2011, the company does not consider any Item of flMed assets as 
obsolete and impaired and therefore there is no charge to Profit and Loss Account on account of the same 
(Previous Yea r Rs. 4 j02 Lacs).

1 4 .  C a p a c i t y  a n d  P r o d u c t i o n

Licensed Capacity Installed C a p a c i ty * * A c tua l P rod uc t io n *

(Tonnes) (Tonnes) (Tonnes)

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 1

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 0

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 1

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 0

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 1

Y e a r  e n d e d  
3 1 . 0 3 . 2 0 1 0

G e la t in e 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 2 4 0 0 2 4 0 0 2 4 7 9 2 4 S 6
OsBein 5 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 4 2 0 0 S57 7 9 4
Di-calc ium 

Ph osphate 1 2 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 0 1 0 5 0 0 1 0 7 9 0 1 0 3 3 5
Bone Meal 3 6 0 0 3 6 0 0 2 5 0 0 2 5 0 0 3 9 1 4 7 1

* Aictualproductlonb exclusive ofproductlonforcaptlve consum ptlonofotherBoneProductsandafter 
adjustment fbr crush ing losses etc. 1737 MT (2009-10-1817)and1ndusiveofpurchaseofGelatineof 
103MT(2009-10-153}.

** InstalledCapacityisascertifiedbytheManaeementandisbasedoncontinuous process in respect of 
Gelatine, Ossein and Dlcaldum Phosphateand on single shift basis Incase of Bone Mill.
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1 5 .  R a w  M a t e r i a l s  C o n s u m e d

Year ended Year ended

31st M a rch , 2011 31st M a rch , 2010

Q u an tity \fa lue Q u an tity \fa lue

(Tonnes) Rs.DOO (Tonnes) Rs.DOO

Raw  Bones 1928 19941 2,080 16 988

Crushed  Bones 20,431 3GG340 19 ,237 231376

H y d ro c h lo r ic  A : id 24 ,510 48053 23,319 33 280

O thers 53161 59 610

Tota l 4,87,495 3,91,254

IG S a l e s  ( G r o s s )

Y e a r  e n d e d Y e a r  e n d e d
B l s t  M a r c h ,  2 0 1 1 3 1 = *  M a r c h ,  2 0 1 0

Q u a n t i t y V a l u e Q u a n t i t y V a l u e
( T o n n e s ) R s .'O O O ( T o n n e s ) R s .'O O O

G e l a t i n e 2 , 4 7 0 6 0 2 0 7 3 2 , 7 1 6 5 7 5 0 E 3
O s s e in E E  3 E 0 1 5 5 7 7 4 5 7 3 0 1
Di c a l c i u m  P h o s p h a t e 1 0 , 7 E 3 2 7 7 4 4 0 1 0 , 4 4 0 2 3 7 5 0 4
B o n e  M e a l 3 6 5 3 4 0 1 4 E 9 3 3 1 4
O t h e r s 1 6 E 7 2 0 9 3

T o t a l 9 6 4 7 5 6 B 7 5 2 9 4

1 7 .  F i n i s h e d  G o o d s  S t o c k s

S t o c k  a s  o n S t o c k  a s  o n S t o c k  as o n
I s t A p r i l ,  2 0 0 9 I s t A p r i l ,  2 0 1 0 3 1 s t  M a r c h ,  2 0 1 1

Q u a n t i t y
T o n n e s

V a l u e  
R s . '0 0 0

Q u a n t i t y
T o n n e s

V a l u e  
R s . ' 0 0 0

Q u a  n t i t y  
T o n n e s

V a l u e  
R s . '0 0 0

G e l a t i n e 3 3 6 4 4 2 1 2 1 0 6 1 0 3 6 5 1 1 5 1 6 1 3 3
O s s e in 2 3 1 5 4 5 4 2 3 2 1 5 1 6 1 4 E 4
D i - c a l c i u m  P h o s p h a t e 2 6 3 2 7 2 0 1 5 E 1 E 9 4 1 6 5 2 3 2 E

B o n e  M e a l 2 4 1 1 0 6 2 9 3 2 2 9 1
O t h e r s 3 3 6 2 7 0 0

T o t a l 4 8 6 1 4 1 5 5 0 3 2 0 2 3 6
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1 0 .  V a l u e  o f  r a w  m a t e r i a l s ,  s t o r e s ,  s p a r e  p a r t s ,  c o m p o n e n t s  c o n s u m e d :

Year ended 

31.3.2011
Year ended 

31.3.2010

Rs.OOO Rs.OOO

(a) Raw Materia ls
Indigenous 4S1S12 99,00 3SS997 9S.90
Imported 5SS3 1,00 4257 1,10

4S749S 100.00 391254 l o a o o
(b) Stones, spare parts  an d 

Components  (Refer Note 3)
Indigenous 12030 99,&S 231S1 100,00
Imported 41 0,34 Nil 0,00

12071 100.00 231S1 l o a o o

1 9 .

20. 

21.

Value of imports  
(C.I.F, basis)

-  Raw M ater ia  Is

Expenditure in -T ra v e l l in g
foreign currency - O t h e r s

Earn in g in fore ign exchange ;
Export o f  goods on F.O.B. basis

2 2 . M anageirlal Reimun etna tio n  :

5724

S3 

3 536

22S07

4257

75
2145

45941

Salary 1147 1147
HRA 574 574

Allowances (excluding leave encashment) 444 444

Companys con tr ibu tion  to Provident and 
Superannuation Funds

138 138

Leave Entashment 32 3

Total 2335 2306

Other Benefits 500 400

The above amount is exclusive of gratuity benefits which are provided on the basis of annual premium 
charged by the UC on an ovefall basis, subject to the maximum amount as prescribed under Income Tax 
rules.

23. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped /  reclasslfTed /  rearranged wherever 
necessary to make them com parable to those forthe Gurrent yea r Flguresinbracket Indicate previous 
Year's figures.



B A I A H C I  S H E E T  A B S T R A C T  A M D  C O M R f t W r S  G E N E R A L  B U S I N E S S  P R O F I L E

R e g is tra t io n  D e t a i i s

Date

R e g is t r a t io n  N o, 1 6 0 2 S

B a l a n c e  S h e e t  D ate S 1 0 S

M o n t h

S ta te  C o d e

2 0 1 1

Y e a r

C a p i t a i  ra ised  du ring th e y e a r  ( A m o u  nt  in Rs, T h o u  sand)  

P u b i i c l s s u e

P o s i t io n  o f  M o b i l i s a t i o n  an d D e p l o y m e  nt  o f  Fu nd s 
( A m o u n t  in Rs, T h o u s a n d )

T o ta l  L iab il i t ies

EtMOg

R i g h t s l s s u e

T o ta l  A s s e t s

6 0 4 4 ( B

N 1 L N 1 L

B o n u s  Issue Pr iv a te  P l a c e m e n t

N 1 L N 1 L

S o u r c e s  o f  F u n d s
P a i d - u p  C ap ita l

4 0 S S B

S e c u r e d  L o a n s

6 5 6 4

D e f e r r e d  T a x a t io n

S S 1 S 2

A p p l i c a t i o n  o f  F u n d s

N e t  F ixed A s s e t s

2 0 6 1 4 S

N e t  C u r r e n t  A s s e t s

S S S 2 5 7

Re s e rv e s  ^ S u r p l u s

5 M S  75

U n s e c u r e d  Lo an s

Inve s t m e n t s

6 5 0 0 S

M i s c .  E x p e n d i t u r e

Cont..2



B a l a n c e  S h e e t  A b s t r a c t  a n d  C o m p a n y ' s  G e n e r a l  B u s i n e s s  P r o f i l e  ( C o n t d . )

IV, P e r f o r m a n c e  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  ( A m o u n t  in Rs, Tti o u s a n d )

N e t  Turn  o ve r

O t h e r  In c o m e

1 3 0 3 2

Profit/( Loss) A f t e r T a x

S 4 7 2 3

D iv id e n d  o n  P r e f e r e n c e  S h a r e s  Rate  %

V  Ge net ic  N a m e s  o f  P ro d u  cts / S e r v i c e s  o f  t h e  C o m p a n y  

Item  C o d e  N o ,  ( I T C C o d e )

P r o d u c t  D e s c r ip t io n

Item  C o d e  N o ,  ( I T C C o d e )  

P r o d u c t  D e s c r ip t io n

G E L A  T

T o ta l  E x p e n d it u re

7 8 2 0 4 6

P rof it/(Loss)  B e f o r e  Tax

1 4 0 7 6 6

Earn ing  p e r s h a r e  in Rs.

23 ,4S

D i v i d e n d  on E q u i t y S h a r e s  R a t e %

4 0 %

3 5 0 3 0 0 2 0

2 3 0 2 , 0 0

D 1 C A L C 1 U M

P H 0 S P H A T E

For and on behalf of tbe Board

J a b a lp u r

JWo/jesfj Verma 

Company Secretary

3 0 ^  M a y ,  2011

Raje

Director

A.Hapor

Director
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a p p o i n t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . o r  f a i l i n g  h i m  a p p o i n t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . o f

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a s  m y / G u r  p r o x y  t G  v o t e f o r m e / u s a n d  o n  m y / o u r  b e h a l f  a t t h e  5 0 * ' '

A N N U A L  G E N E R A L  M E E T I N G  o f  t h e  C o m  p a n y  t o  b e  h e l d  o n  M o n d a y ,  1 9 * ' '  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 1 1  a t  1 2 ;  0 0  

n o o n  a t  H o t e l  N a r m a d a  J a c k s o n ,  S o u t h  Q v i l  l i n e s ,  J a b a l p u r ,  o r  a t  a n y  a d j o u r n m  e n t  t h e r e o f ,

S i g n e d  t h i s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  d a y  o f . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 0 1 1

A p p l i e d  f o r  i n v e s t o r s  h o l d i n g  s h a r e s  i n  e l e c t r o n i c  f o r m

N o t e ; -  1  T h e  p r o x y  i n  o r d e r t o  b e  e f f e c t i v e  s h o u l d  b e  d u l y  s t a m  p e d ,  c o m p l e t e d  a n d  s i g n e d  a n d  m  u s t  

b e  d e p o s i t e d  a t  t h e  R e g s t e r e d  O f f i c e  o f  t h e  C o m  p a n y  n o t  I e s s  t h a n  4 8  h o u r s  b e f o r e  t h e  t i m e  

f o r  h o  I d  i n  g a f o  r e s a i d  m  e e t i n g  T h e  R r o x y  n e e d  n o t  b e  a  m  e m b e r o f  t h e  O o m p a n y

2 .  M e m b e r s  h o l d i n g  s h a r e s  u n d e r  m  o r e  t h a n  o n e  f o l i o  m a y  u s e  p h o t o c o p y  o f  t h i s  R r o x y  f o r m  

f o r  o t h e r  f o l i o s .  T h e  C o m  p a n y  s h a l l  p r o v i d e  a d d i t i o n a l  f o r m s  o n  r e q u e s t .


